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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.
The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean
that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there
is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible
to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of AKM
Industrial Company Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for
the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHREE

For and on behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), |
would like to present the annual report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2013.

RESULT ANALYSIS AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has strengthened its position and further
implemented its adjustment plan in 2013. As the Group shifted
to serve mainly major international customers, demands for
higher product quality, more advanced production technology
and better customer services significantly increased. During
the year, the Group has reorganized and strengthened
our marketing team, customer services team, supply chain
management team and factory management team, as well
as their composition. Besides, we have further expanded our
engineering technology team and provided them with more
training, which has effectively enhanced our internal capability,
and our ability to serve major international customers has
gradually improved. During the year, as the Group increased its
investment in research and development and strived for support
from the government on R&D resources, our high-end R&D
project has progressed smoothly. The Group’s management
believes that, notwithstanding the intensified competition
in the flexible printed circuits (FPC) market, following the
continuous improvement in the co-operative relationship
between the Group and major international customers, the
gradual commencement of commercial and mass production of
the high end R&D projects, as well as the continuous growth of
our core businesses of FPC and flexible packaging substrates,
the Group will create better returns for the shareholders.

The Group’s turnover for the year 2013 was approximately
HK$641.16 million, representing an increase of approximately
6.74% as compared to 2012, while the profit attributable to
the owners of the Company was approximately HK$30.30
million, representing a decrease of approximately 6.62% as
compared to 2012.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

In 2014, facing the trend of intensified competition and
increased concentration in the FPC industry, as well as the
pressure from high labor costs, the Group will focus on
identifying major international customers, advancing our
technology in all aspects, enhancing quality control ability,
as well as further elevating the FPC production capacity of
the Nansha Factory and Suzhou Factory, ensuring the smooth
commencement of production of the flexible packaging
substrates project by the end of the year. Internal management
and competitiveness will be continually strengthened and our
profitability is expected to be gradually uplifted.

The Group is committed to construct its core competence and
achieve the Group's profit target, thereby creating greater value
for its shareholders, employees and the community. The Group
is devoted to becoming an major international supplier of FPC
and electronic modules, and becoming an industry leader in
the PRC. Therefore, the Group will continue to expand the
electronic components business and improve its capability to
meet the customers’ demands for “one-stop service”. It will
also expand the high-value added flexible packaging substrates
and improve its core competitiveness, so as to provide better
services to the fast-developing electronic industry.

Following the completion of the subscription of 290,920,000
shares of the Company by GoerTek Inc. (“GoerTek™)) (“Shares
Subscription”) on 27 January 2014, the Group has successfully
introduced GoerTek as the strategic investor and enlarged the
share capital and reserve of the Group. By enhancing further
cooperation with the strategic investor, the Group expected to
tap into the global supply chain system of major international
customers at a faster pace, and has laid down a solid
foundation for the future development of the Group.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHREE

APPRECIATION

On 4 February 2013, Mr. Wang Heng Yi resigned as an
independent non-executive Director, a member of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company, and
Mr. Bi Keyun was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, a member of the audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Company on the same day. After the
completion of the Shares Subscription on 27 January 2014,
GoerTek became the strategic investor of the Group, and Mr.
Gong Jiantang was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company on the same day. For and on behalf of the Board,
I would like to take this opportunity to thank Mr. Wang for his
valuable contribution to the Company and express our warm
welcome to Mr. Bi and Mr. Gong for joining our company.

In addition, for and on behalf of the Board, | would like to
take this opportunity to thank the management and all staff
members of the Group for their dedication and invaluable
contributions to the Group in the past year. | would also like to
thank our clients, suppliers, business partners and shareholders
for their continuous support to the Group. The Group will do
its best to achieve good results and secure ideal returns for our
shareholders.

AKM Industrial Company Limited
XIONG Zheng Feng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 March 2014

E &)

R-T—=F_FANA EFEHERLLHEIAR
BIZBYIRTES BERRBERFHEE
CZZE NABERARERZERART
ZEBIYFNTER BERZEQLFMERS
ZEREB-R-_FT-OF-—A-F+LtAKRNOHAE
FHEKR NEZERASANEE 2 B IER
BE RNARERRELEBZERRARBZIE
HITEF - AABUBERREZTERIFTE
EUARRBERZ BB LA BCD R 5T A A
BEREMARRE -

BN RAMEERERERETE HAKEZ
EEBRSEIBRE—FNHZBHENRE
EEEFBUHE AIREHHASEZZF #
FER XEBAERBEERRR—EURZENX
BREEEH - AEEEENNEEEEE AR
A5 PR TP A8 (O] 37 o

ZENEXARAT
B IE g
EY

B —T-mWF=A+H

Annual Report 2013 —Z—=H£#

7



Directors and Senior Management of the Group

REBEENRSREEE

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out below:

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng (B§IFI£)
of the Company and an executive Director. In July 1992, he

aged 44, is the chairman

graduated from the Department of Computer Science of
KE (Nankai University) and obtained his bachelor degree in
science. He then obtained his master degree in economics from
m F KB4 28T (Nankai University School of Economics) in
July 1995. Mr. Xiong joined FEIdt75 T %2 a] (China North
Industries Corporation) in August 1995 and took up the post
of deputy general manager of FEldL 5 T#/EPJ A7 (China
North Industries Xiamen Corporation) from October 1999 to
November 2000. From April 2003 to January 2011, he was an
alternate director of Raymond Industrial Ltd, a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, and
is a non-executive director since January 2011. In November
2000, Mr. Xiong joined Silver City International (Holdings) Ltd.
(SRERRE (£B)ERAA) ("Silver City”), the controlling
shareholder and a substantial shareholder of the Company, as
assistant General Manager and was promoted to the position
of Deputy General Manager of Silver City in March 2004. He
is also a director of Alpha Luck Industrial Limited (% | &
#EBRA7F), the controlling shareholder and a substantial
shareholder of the Company, since March 2001. Mr. Xiong is
also a director of the subsidiaries of the Group, namely AKM
Electronics Industrial (Panyu) Ltd., AKM Electronic Technology
(Suzhou) Company Limited and Giant Rise Technology Limited,
and has resigned from his directorship in Giant Rise Technology
Limited on 25 February 2014. Mr. Xiong joined the Company
in March 2001 and is responsible for the Group’s corporate
policy formulation, business strategies planning, business
development and management of the Group. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Xiong does not hold any directorship in other listed
companies in the past three years, and does not have any other
relationship with any directors, senior management, substantial
shareholders, or controlling shareholders of the Company.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF
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Directors and Senior Management of the Group

REBEENSREEE

Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang (47&3), aged 53, is an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company. In
January 1982, he graduated from the B¢+ fiTE % (Faculty
of Laser Technology) of K& XZRBEMEMZER (Changchun
Institute of Optics and Fine Mechanics) and obtained his
bachelor degree in engineering. He then obtained his # % 7%
£ (Certificate on continuing education) from the & RE
LT (Hong Kong Sino-Australia Management College) in
June 2001. From February 1982 to September 1992, Mr. Chai
was employed by the L& & 5 M B KX E 28 M (Shuguang
Appliances Factory of Yangzhou City, Jiangsu Province) as
engineer and branch-factory manager. He then joined #f
F(EMNEFTEREXBR AT (Alpha Luck Electronic &
Electric Appliance Industrial (Guangzhou) Ltd.) in October
1992 as project manager. In January 1994, Mr. Chai joined
the Company and is responsible for research and development
and overall management of the Group. Mr. Chai has over 21
years of experience in the flexible printed circuit production
industry. Mr. Chai is a director of the subsidiaries of the Group,
namely, AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu) Ltd., AKM Electronic
Technology (Suzhou) Company Limited, Giant Rise Technology
Limited and New Career Guangzhou Electronics Company
Limited, and has resigned from his directorship in Giant Rise
Technology Limited on 25 February 2014. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Chai does not hold any directorship in other listed
companies in the past three years, and does not have any other
relationship with any directors, senior management, substantial
shareholders, or controlling shareholder of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management of the Group

REBEENRSREEE

Ms. Li Ying Hong (Z=BRAL) , aged 50, is an executive Director.
In July 1985, she obtained her bachelor degree in corporate
finance and accounting from ST FAEAE BT (Jiangxi College
of Finance). In May 2003, she obtained her master degree in
international management from Australia National University.
During the period from August 1985 to February 2003,
Ms. Li was employed as, amongst other roles, deputy chief
accountant, deputy general manager and chief accountant of
FE&EE TIE2AR (Wanbao China Engineering Corporation).
From March 2001 to April 2003, she was a director for 1t 75
BB A& ERL ) AR 2 8 (Norinco International Cooperation
Company Limited), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange in China. She is a non-executive director of Raymond
Industrial Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong, since July 2008. In June 2003, Ms.
Li joined Silver City as a director, deputy general manager and
financial controller. At the same time, she joined the Company
and is responsible for the Group's corporate policy formulation,
business strategies planning, business development and
management of the Group. Ms. Li is a director of the
subsidiaries of the Group, namely, AKM Electronics Industrial
(Panyu) Ltd. and AKM Electronic Technology (Suzhou) Company
Limited. Save as disclosed above, Ms. Li does not hold any
directorship in other listed companies in the past three years,
and does not have any other relationship with any directors,
senior management, substantial shareholders, or controlling
shareholders of the Company.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF
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Directors and Senior Management of the Group

REBEENSREEE

Non-executive Director

Mr. Meng Weiwei (& {&) , aged 45, obtained his bachelor
degree in economics and master degree in economics in July
1991 and July 1994 respectively from B A R K2 (Renmin
University of China). He obtained the qualification of senior
economist in December 2002. Mr. Meng joined A B4t 75 T2
7~ A] (China North Industries Corporation) in January 1996 and
is the vice supervisor of the strategic management department
and strategic operation department since June 2004. Mr. Meng
is a director of L A TEMEERAF - IEFREEREETA
A and bt EHEZEBR AR all of which are subsidiaries
of mEI4tF T2 &) (China North Industries Corporation).
Mr. Meng is also a director of dt7FAZETHEEBHRAF]
which shares are owned as to approximately 38.78% by A [
1t 75 T %2 7 (China North Industries Corporation). Mr. Meng
was appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company
on 2 November 2012.Save as disclosed above, Mr. Meng does
not hold any directorship in other listed companies in the past
three years, and does not have any relationship with any other
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders, or
controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Gong Jiantang (B R &), aged 40, is currently Senior
Deputy General Manager of GoerTek Inc. ("GoerTek”). Mr.
Gong obtained a master degree in business management
from j&FE KE (Tsinghua University) in 2004 and a bachelor
degree in engineering from ¥ E T3 K2 (Harbin Institute
of Technology) in 1996. Mr. Gong was previously the technical
manager of & YIZE AR AR A7) (Huawei Technologies Co.,
Ltd) and supervisor engineer of —/R—AKF (E&)/TEEEF
AR AR (FAW-Daewoo (Yantai) Automotive Engines Co.,
Ltd.). Mr. Gong joined GoerTek in 2004 and has been a director
of GoerTek (which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange)
since 28 July 2010. Mr. Gong was appointed as non-executive
Director of the Company on 27 January 2014. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Gong does not hold any directorship in other listed
companies in the past three years, and does not have any
relationship with any other directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders, or controlling shareholders of the
Company.
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Directors and Senior Management of the Group

REBEENRSREEE

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew (3#t&3&) , aged 45, is currently
the director of Norton Rowland CPA Limited. He received his
professional training in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and had
worked for UBS Investment Bank as business unit controller for
seven years. Mr. Hung was awarded the degree of Bachelor of
Arts in Accountancy by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
(formerly known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic) and the degree
of Master of Applied Finance by the University of Western
Sydney. Mr. Hung is a practicing Certified Public Accountant,
an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and a fellow member of The Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants. Mr. Hung is also an
independent non-executive director of CIAM Group Limited (a
subsidiary of CITIC International Assets Management Limited),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
since 1 July 2008. Mr. Hung was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in 17 October 2011. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Hung does not hold any directorship in other listed
companies in the past three years, and does not have any
relationship with any other directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders, or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Mr. Liang zhi Li (R73&3), aged 70, is currently a fellow of
FEEFES (CIE) and the deputy chief secretary of FEIE]
HIBIITEWE (CPCA). He graduated from 1t R Z=fi K
K2 (Beihang University) in September 1967. He has been
highly involved and has accumulated substantial experience in
the printed circuit board industry, in particular, the production
of double-sided and multi-layer printed circuit boards. Mr.
Liang was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director since 19 March 2004. Mr. Liang does not hold any
directorship in other listed companies in the past three years
and does not have any other relationship with any directors,
senior management, substantial shareholders, or controlling
shareholder of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management of the Group

REBEENSREEE

Mr. Bi Keyun (2% ), aged 75, is currently a fellow of
ETEE (Chinese Institute of Electronics) and president of
HE 223 il Eiio & (Electronic Manufacturing
& Packaging Technology Society of the Chinese Institute of
Electronics). He is also the vice president of A [E & 277
%1% € (China Semiconductor Industry Association). Mr. Bi
graduated from 1B RIE2 i KZ2 (University of Science and
Technology of China) in 1963 and obtained the qualification
of senior engineer (researcher level) from the former A ZE
ARKEMBEEFLTEES (Ministry of Electronic Industry). Mr.
Bi has accumulated substantial experience in the research
and development of semiconductor technology and has
been chairman of the International Conference on Electronic
Packaging Technology & High Density Package since 1994. Mr.
Bi is an independent director of ZFFE®RE TN AR A A
(Ningbo Kanggiang Electronics Co., Ltd.), a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, since October 2008. He was
also an independent director of K/KZEXEHHHEMDBR AR
(Tianshui Huatian Technology Co., Ltd.)(“Tianshui Huatian”),
another company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
during the period from 2003 to 2010, and was appointed as
independent director of Tianshui Huatian again since 29 May
2013. Mr. Bi was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 4 February 2013. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Bi
does not hold any directorship in other listed companies in the
past three years, and does not have any relationship with any
other directors, senior management, substantial shareholders,
or controlling shareholders of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Hung Ching Yuen (& 3&), aged 34, is the company
secretary of the Company. Ms. Hung graduated from the
University of Hong Kong and obtained her Bachelor of Laws
degree and Postgraduate Certificate in Laws in 2001 and 2002
respectively. She obtained her Master of Laws degree from
University College London, University of London in September
2003. Ms Hung is a solicitor practicing in Hong Kong since
2006 and was appointed as the company secretary on 13 June
2011.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERBNWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the turnover of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$641.16 million,
representing an increase of approximately 6.74% as compared
to the turnover of last year. The increase in turnover was mainly
attributed to the increase in the sales of FPC, sourcing and
sales of electronic components, and the manufacture and sales
of flexible packaging substrates. The gross profit margin for
the year decreased to approximately 13.78% (2012: 15.51%)
due to the decrease in gross profit margin of sale of FPC and
sourcing and sale of electronic components.

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company for
2013 was approximately HK$30.30 million, while the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company was approximately
HK$32.45 million for 2012, representing a decrease of
approximately 6.62%. The decrease in profit was mainly
attributed to the increase in labor cost and substantial increase
in research and development expenses.

The other income of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 amounted to approximately HK$10.33 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK6.49 million or
169.05% as compared to that of last year. The increase in
other income was mainly due to the significant increase in
government grant for research and development projects as
compared to that of the last year.

The distribution costs of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 amounted to approximately HK$12.05 million,
representing a slight decrease of approximately 1.81% as
compared to the distribution costs of last year. The decrease in
distribution costs was mainly due to the decrease in bad debt
reserves as compared to last year.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF
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The administrative expenses of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 amounted to approximately HK$25.13 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 9.09% as compared
to that of last year. The decrease in administrative expenses was
mainly due to the decrease in transportation fees and reception
fees during the year.

The research and development expenses of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to approximately
HK$22.59 million, representing a substantial increase of
approximately 78.59% as compared to that of last year. The
increase in research and development expenses was due to the
substantial increase in staff, equipments and materials costs for
the research and development of new projects.

The finance cost of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013 amounted to approximately HK$5.41 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 16.29% as compared to that of
last year. The decrease in finance costs was due to the decrease
in interest rate of the borrowings.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Business Review

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of FPC, which are used in communication, LCD and consumer
electronic products such as mobile phones, LCD module, car
electronics and cameras. The Group is also engaged in sourcing
and sale of electronic components and the manufacture and
sale of flexible packaging substrates business (including both
of the original business of the encapsulation of Chip On Film
("COF") modules and the new product lines of COF films and
flexible integrated circuits and module packaging substrates).
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For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group's turnover
was approximately HK$641.16 million, representing an increase
of approximately 6.74% as compared to 2012. During the
year under review, the Group's turnover for the sales of FPC,
sourcing and sales of electronic components and the sales of
flexible packaging substrates (including both of the original
business of encapsulation of COF modules and the new product
lines of COF films and flexible integrated circuits and module
packaging substrates) were approximately HK$539.25 million,
HK$89.21 million and HK$12.70 million respectively, while the
turnover for the sales of FPC, sourcing and sales of electronic
components and the original business of the encapsulation
of COF modules for the year ended 31 December 2012 were
HK$82.92 million and
HK$3.05 million respectively. The profit attributable to the

approximately HK$514.72 million,

owners of the Group for 2013 was approximately HK$30.30
million, representing a decrease of approximately 6.62% as
compared to 2012, which was mainly due to the increase
in labor costs and substantial increase in the research and
development expenses.

During the year under review, the turnover for the sales of
FPC increased by approximately 4.77% as compared to that
of last year, while its gross profit margin decreased slightly to
approximately 13.49% (2012: approximately 16.53%). The
turnover for sourcing of electronic components increased by
approximately 7.58% as compared to that of last year, while
its gross profit margin decreased to approximately 9.54%
(2012: approximately 10.22%). Since the first quarter of
the year under review, the Group has received orders for
other flexible packaging substrates, including COF films and
flexible integrated circuits and module packaging substrates.
As such new products of the Group adopt similar production
technology and share substantially same production lines
with the encapsulation of COF modules, the encapsulation of
COF modules, COF films and flexible integrated circuits and
module packaging substrates are regarded as same series of
products of the Group, and are therefore renamed as “flexible
packaging substrates” business to include the original business
of encapsulation of COF modules and to reflect the expansion
of new product lines accordingly. During the year under
review, turnover for the flexible packaging substrates business

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF
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(including both the income from the encapsulation of COF
modules and the income from the new product lines of COF
films and flexible integrated circuits and module packaging
substrates) increased by approximately 316.9% as compared
to approximately HK$3.05 million (which only represented the
income from the original encapsulation of COF modules) of
last year, while the gross profit margin(taken into account all
of the above-mentioned original business and new product
lines) increased to approximately 56.06% (the gross loss
margin for the above-mentioned original business in 2012 was
approximately 13.21%).

During the year under review, the Group’s core FPC business
recorded slight growth and fell short of the expectation at the
beginning of the year, which was mainly due to market shrank
in the business of one of our major clients resulting in decrease
of orders. Our Group's FPC production was mainly completed
in the Nansha Factory and Suzhou Factory. During the year
under review, the construction and outdoor decoration of
phase Il of Suzhou Factory has been completed, and the indoor
decoration and sourcing of equipments for the new production
line for flexible packaging substrates project commenced at the
beginning of 2014. It is expected that production in phase Il of
Suzhou Factory will commence by the end of 2014.

During the year under review, the Group's sourcing and sale of
electronic components business maintained stable and healthy
growth. The Group will focus on the steady development
and risk control of this business, and will enhance the
competitiveness of our core business through improving the
business and optimizing the Group’s supply management of
electronic components.
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EERBNWR DM

During the year under review, market expansion achieved
remarkable effect and has created a favorable environment for
the development of the Group's flexible packaging substrates
(including both of the original business of the encapsulation
of COF modules and the new product lines of COF films and
flexible integrated circuits and module packaging substrates)
business. However, during the fourth quarter of 2013, due
to the adjustment of technical requirement to the products
of one of our major clients, corresponding modifications to
the engineering design and production process route of such
products had to be made, resulting in a drop of sales in the
fourth quarter as compared to the third quarter. As at the date
of this report, the relevant technical modifications had been
completed and all requisite product testing had been passed.
Products delivery has resumed since the beginning of March
2014.

During the year under review, the Group continued to increase
its investment in the research and development. The research
and development expenses increased by 78.59% to HK$22.59
million as compared to the corresponding period of last year.
Our research and development expenses were mainly used
for recruiting domestic and foreign talented technicians,
and the renewal and upgrade of the experimenting and
testing equipments of the R&D center. During the year under
review, through recruiting talents, the Group has enlarged its
technician team and strengthened its technology development
standard. The management believes that the Group's research
and development standard in flexible packaging substrates
project has been uplifted to a leading level in the country, and
has achieved substantial progress in identifying major projects
for our current and future development.
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REEFERN AEEZFZEHEER (BER
X ERERANHEARHEMRERE R
ERMETUEREA REETEER) ZBEET S
RAMRBELRRFBERES - AN - E-F
—ZHFENFER AHER-RITBEEPZE
mABRMEREHABRMBE RN ZFERNT
BRI MEETERGEREESR EHED
FEHERLE=ZFELR TR RAKEH
Hi - BT E e L 2 BB HEDA
A E-HF=-AVEREEFLEE-

REBFEAN AEBFEMAHEZIRA 6
BT EF RS K78.59%%22,590,000/%8
ToAEBZMBEREZEERARSIEFAINT
ERMEA KRB FROEN RO R B R
H-ROBBEFEERN  AEBEBBSIEAT  ER
TEBMEMBEKIIRA T B RIMHEEK
£ EEEHEASEZMHEERER 2
BOKEDIRAZBENELEKE  WEEEER
RARERZERBEFHCIISEZHR-



Management Discussion and Analysis
EERBNWR DM

During the year under review, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement (“Subscription Agreement”) with #XER
BERMARADAE (GoerTek Inc.) (“GoerTek”) and a placing
agreement (“Placing Agreement”) with an independent
placing manager, both on 27 November 2013. Pursuant to
the Subscription Agreement, GoerTek had subscribed for
290,920,000 shares of the Company (“Shares Subscription”)
and pursuant to the Placing Agreement, a total of 132,150,000
shares of the Company had been placed to not less than six
placees (“Placing of Shares”) by the Company. The Shares
Subscription and the Placing of Shares were both completed
on 27 January 2014. Details about the Shares Subscription and
the Placing of Shares had been disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 27 November 2013, 27 December 2013
and 27 January 2014.

During the year under review, the Group focused on the
following aspects in accordance with its corporate development
strategy: identifying and developing major international
customers, securing more sales orders, further expanding the
production capacity and enhancing the automation level of
Nansha Factory and Suzhou Factory, enhancing the stability of
production technology for high-end FPC, researching on the
application of FPC and its bulk production, and optimizing the
corporate value chain. Internal management quality was also
strengthened and has yielded positive results during the year.
As all of our business lines progressed as expected, our efforts
on consolidation and thorough adjustment will bring us fruitful
results.

Outlook

The Group is dedicated to strengthen its core competence and
achieve the Group's profit goal, thereby creating greater value
for its shareholders, its staffs as well as the community. It is the
Group’s mission to become a major international supplier of
FPC and electronic modules and to become an industry leader
in the PRC market.
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In light of the trend of intensified competition and increased
concentration in the FPC industry, the Group has focused to
serve major international customers by the provision of FPC and
its components, as well as high-end flexible packaging substrates
products. At present, the Group has become a qualified supplier
of a number of globally renowned electronic manufacturers.

In order to fulfil the demand for global supply chain system
from major international customers, the Group has established
two production bases in Southern China and Eastern China
respectively which has expanded the capacity and scale of the
Group. As a result, the Group’s ability in meeting the “one-stop
demand” from major international customers has improved
significantly, and the Group’s concept of offering “one-stop
service” to customers can be effectively implemented.

In 2014, the Group will focus on identifying major international
customers, advancing our technology in all aspects, enhancing
quality control ability, as well as further elevating the
production capacity of Nansha Factory and Suzhou Factory, so
as to ensure the flexible packaging substrates project in phase II
of Suzhou Factory can commence production smoothly. Besides,
by taking full advantage of the synergistic effect brought
along by co-operation with our strategic investor, placing more
effort in developing major international customers, as well as
striving for favorable policy support from the government, our
internal management and competitiveness will be continually
strengthened and our profitability is expected to be gradually
uplifted. The Group is confident that our scale of operation will
be further expanded and the benefits of economy of scale will
also be achieved.

The Board is of the opinion that, the Group is now capable
of serving major international customers and fulfilling their
personalized demands in general. With the introduction
of GoerTek as the strategic investor of the Group, our
ability to tap into the global supply chain system has been
enhanced substantially. Despite the drastic changes of the
economic environment in China and the world, the intensified
competition and increased concentration in the industry and
the pressure from the continuous increase in labor costs and
other costs, the Group is still confident that it will be able
to achieve scale operation and bring favorable returns to its
shareholders.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group financed its operations primarily with internally
generated fund from operating activities and banking facilities
currently available. It is anticipated that the Group has
sufficient working capital for its present funding requirements.
As at 31 December 2013, the Group had outstanding
borrowings amounting to approximately HK$126,319,000, all
of which were bank borrowings and no bank overdrafts.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a total of 1,693 full-
time employees (2012: 1,708 employees) based in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The total staff costs of the Group, including the
Directors’ remunerations, for the year ended 31 December
2013 amounted to approximately HK$94,159,000 (2012:
HK$78,839,000). The Group fixes and reviews the emoluments
of its directors and staff based on the qualification, experience,
performance and the market rates so as to maintain the
remunerations of its directors and staff at a competitive
level. The Group participates in various defined contribution
retirement plans and insurance schemes in compliance with its
statutory obligations under the laws and regulations of the PRC
and Hong Kong. The Directors believe that employees are one
of the most valuable assets of the Group which significantly
contributed to the success of the Group. Apart from the basic
remuneration and staff benefits, the Company also provides
employees with share option schemes so as to reward their
contributions to the Group and to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high-calibre employees. The Group recognises the
importance of staff training and, hence, regular training is
provided to the Group's staff to enhance their technical and
product knowledge. Majority of the Group’'s employees are
stationed in the PRC.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Since 18 August 2004, the shares of the Company have
been listed on GEM and there has been no change in the
capital structure of the Company. The capital of the Company
comprises only ordinary shares.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
significant investments as at 31 December 2013.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
material acquisitions or disposals during the year ended 31
December 2013.

FUTURE PLANS RELATING TO MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group completed the Shares Subscription and the
Placing of Shares on 27 January 2014. The gross proceeds
from the Shares Subscription and the Placing of Shares was
approximately HK$217,030,000, while the net proceeds was
approximately HK$213,996,000 which are intended to be
used for (i) the expansion of the flexible packaging substrates
business of the Group; (ii) the research and development of
new products; and (iii) general working capital of the Group.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2013, bank deposits of approximately
HK$2.355 million (as at 31 December 2012: approximately
HK$2.354 million) of the Group were pledged as collateral to
secure the banking facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31 December 2013, land use rights and buildings with
carrying amounts of approximately HK$20.671 million and
HK$63.496 million respectively (as at 31 December 2012:
approximately HK$20.564 million and HK$63.349 million) were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group.

As at 31 December 2013, machinery and equipment with
carrying amounts of approximately HK$71.728 million (as at
31 December 2012: approximately HK$54.786 million) were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a net cash and
cash equivalent position of approximately HK$42.177
million. The Group's gearing ratio as at 31 December
2013 was approximately 56.82% (31 December 2012:
56.78%) which was calculated based on the Group’s total
liabilities of approximately HK$372,184,000 (31 December
2012: HK$320,216,000) and total assets of approximately
HK$655,027,000 (31 December 2012: HK$563,943,000).

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The income and expenditure of the Group are mainly received
and incurred in US$ and RMB and the assets and liabilities
of the Group are denominated in HK$ and RMB. The Group
is therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
currency exposures, primarily with respect to US$ and RMB. The
results of operations and the financial position of the Group
may be affected by any changes in the exchanges rates and the
Group has not taken any hedging measures in this connection.
Further, the conversion of RMB denominated balances into
foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the government of
the PRC. However, taking into account the Group’s current
operational and capital requirements, the Directors do not
consider the Group is significantly exposed to any foreign
currency exchange risk.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the Group's capital commitments are set out in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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INTRODUCTION

Subject to the deviation as disclosed in this report, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions on
Corporate Governance Code as set out in the GEM Listing Rules
by establishing formal and transparent procedures to protect
and maximize the interests of shareholders during the year
under review.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less than the
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry on all
Directors, the Directors have complied with such code of
conduct and the standard of dealings regarding securities
transactions throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING

The Board currently consists of 3 executive Directors and 5
non-executive Directors of which 3 are independent non-
executive Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng (Chairman)

Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Li Ying Hong

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Meng Weiwei
Mr. Gong Jiantang (appointed on 27 January 2014)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew

Mr. Liang Zhi Li

Mr. Bi Keyun (appointed on 4 February 2013)

Mr. Wang Heng Yi (resigned on 4 February 2013)
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The Board is responsible for the Group’s corporate policy
formulation, business strategies planning, business
development, risk management, major acquisitions, disposals
and capital transactions, and other significant operational
and financial matters. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management
include the preparation of annual and interim accounts for
the Board’s approval before public reporting, execution of
business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and
risk management procedures, and compliance with relevant
statutory requirements and rules and regulations. During
the year under review, the Board and its audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee have
performed corporate governance duties in accordance with the
functions set out in the code provision D.3.1.

Details of backgrounds and qualifications of the chairman of
the Company and the other Directors are set out on pages 8
to 13 of this annual report. All Directors have given sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Group. Each executive
Director has sufficient experience to hold the position so as
to carry out his duties effectively and efficiently. There is no
relationship among the members of the Board. According
to code provision A.1.8, the Company is required to make
appropriate insurance coverage for certain legal liabilities
which may arise in the course of performing their duties. The
Company had purchased directors’ liabilities insurance for the
directors of the Company in August 2013.
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During the year under review, the Company appointed one
non-executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors, and has appointed one additional non-executive
Director since 27 January 2014, all appointed directors have
appropriate and sufficient experience and qualification to carry
out their duties so as to protect the interests of shareholders.
Mr. Meng Weiwei was appointed as a non-executive Director
with effect from 2 November 2012, and Mr. Gong Jiantang
was appointed as a non-executive Director with effect from 27
January 2014. Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew, Mr. Liang Zhi Li and
Mr. Bi Keyun were the independent non-executive Directors.
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew was appointed for a term of three
years commenced from 17 October 2011. Mr. Liang Zhi Li was
first appointed on 19 March 2004 for a term of three years,
and was then reappointed on 19 March 2007, 19 March 2010
and 19 March 2013 respectively, each for a term of three years.
Mr. Wang Heng Yi resigned as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 4 February 2013, and Mr. Bi Keyun
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
4 February 2013 for a term of three year. All of them are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association.

Under the Code Provision A.4.2, every director should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules,
the Company has received written confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director confirming his independence
to the Company. Based on such confirmations of independence,
the Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

During the year under review, Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng was

the chairman and Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang was the chief executive
officer.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF
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The roles of the chairman and chief executive officer are
segregated and are not exercised by the same individual
during the year under review. The chairman’s responsibility is
to manage the Board while the chief executive officer’s is to
manage the business of the Company.

REBEFAR TEMTRERZBIEEME D
VIHR-ARZE- TEZBEREREESS
MITHAAHZBEREEARA ZEH-

The Board held a full board meeting for each quarter. EEgFHERTEEKENFEER-
Details of the attendance of the meetings of the members of Z=EZEXEELNEFALFEZTS LR 2k
the Board during the year under review are as follows: FEIBIT :
Attendance

Directors 2= R #
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng ARIE & 5o A& 4/4
Mr. Chai zhi Qiang oot A 4/4
Ms. Li Ying Hong TRRAT £ 4/4
Mr. Meng Weiwei hEEEE 4/4
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew HEERLE 4/4
Mr. Liang Zhi Li RELFAE 4/4
Mr. Bi Keyun EOptE(RZE—=F

(appointed on 4 February 2013) “AMHEZT) 4/4
Mr. Gong Jiantang BEREEE (RZE—MWF

(appointed on 27 January 2014) —AZt+tEHEZF) 0/0
Apart from the above regular board meetings of the year, the B EFilFEATHEETE SN EESREH
members of the Board will meet on other occasions when a %#ﬁkﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ%i% ATHBITEH -ES

board-level decision on a particular matter is required. The
Directors will receive agenda and details of items for decision in
advance of each board meeting.

REBRESEER IS LELEEREH
A
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CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the Company engaged a
professional training institution to provide all directors with
relevant training on directors’ responsibilities and information
disclosure, relations between assessment and financial
reporting. An internal training in relation to amendments to
the GEM Listing Rules was organized. Other than Mr. Gong
Jiantang who was appointed on 27 January 2014, all Directors
had complied with the requirements set out in the code
provision A.6.5, participated in the continuous professional
development, developed and refreshed their knowledge and
skills, to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established in August 2005
with written terms of reference. Mr. Liang Zhi Li (being an
independent non-executive director) has been appointed
as the chairman of the committee. Other members of the
remuneration committee are Ms. Li Ying Hong and Mr. Bi
Keyun.

The role and function of the remuneration committee included
the determination of the specific remuneration packages of
all executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, such as any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors. The remuneration committee should
consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability
of performance-based remuneration.
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During the year under review, two meetings of the
remuneration committee were held. Details of the attendance
of the remuneration committee meeting are as follows:

REBEFN FHEZESERBITMAER -EF
hEFMEZEeeR 2R BFBOT

Attendance

Directors -} R E

Mr. Liang Zhi Li RELTAE 2/2

Ms. Li Ying Hong TRRAT 22+ 2/2
Mr. Bi Keyun Bkt (RZTE—=F

(appointed on 4 February 2013) “RMBEZT) 2/2

The remuneration committee of the Company has considered
and reviewed the existing terms of employment contracts of the
executive Directors and appointment letters of the independent
non-executive Directors. The remuneration committee of the
Company considers that the existing terms of employment
contracts of the executive Directors and appointment letters
of the independent non-executive Directors are fair and
reasonable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established on 22 March 2012
with written terms of reference. The chairman of the committee
is Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng who acts as the chairman of the Board
with the other members including Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew
and Mr. Liang Zhi Li , thus the majority of the committee are
independent non-executive directors.

The nomination committee shall review the structure, size
and composition of the Board (including skills, knowledge,
experience, past performance and qualification, etc.) and assess
the independence of independent non-executive directors and
the adequacy of Corporate Governance Code. The committee
is responsible for formulating nomination policy, identifying
candidates for Directors and making recommendations to
the Board in respect of the nomination, appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession plan of Directors.
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The Company acknowledges that the diversification of the
members of the Board has positive effects on enhancing the
Group’s performance. The Company sees the diversification
of the members of the Board as an important supporting
factor for the Group to achieve its strategic goal and maintain
sustainable growth. In deciding the composition of the Board,
the Company will consider the Board diversity from various
perspectives, including but not limited to sex, age, cultural
and academic background, race, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and terms of services. All of our Directors
are appointed according to the principle of meritocracy while
all candidates are being selected objectively, and the benefit
of Board diversity will also be taken into full consideration.
The nomination committee will review the diversity of the
composition of the Board on regular basis, and will monitor the
implementation of this policy, so as to ensure this policy has

been effectively implemented.
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During the year under review, one meeting of the nomination MREEFER ELEE8eHBT—ReH -B=
committee was held. Details of the attendance of the H/FRAZZECEFZLEFBNOT:
nomination committee meeting are as follows:

Attendance
Directors -} R E
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng ARIE & 5o A 1/1
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew HEESLAE 1/1
Mr. Liang Zhi Li RETFE 1/1
The nomination committee considered and resolved that all the R&RZ B &ZE LA RHEREAQ T2 iR
existing Directors shall be recommended to be retained by the {EE%H-
Company.
AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION % B R B =

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for
considering the appointment of the external auditor and
reviewing any non-audit functions performed by the external
auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could
lead to any potential material adverse effect on the Company.
During the year under review, the Group is required to pay an
aggregate of approximately HK$740,000 to the external auditor
for their audit service.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee
are to review and supervise the financial reporting process
and internal controls system of the Group and provide advice
and comments on the Company’s draft annual reports and
accounts, half year reports and quarterly reports to Directors.
During the year under review, the audit committee comprised
of three members, Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew, Mr. Liang Zhi Li
and Mr. Bi Keyun. All of them were independent non-executive
Directors. The chairman of the audit committee is Mr. Hung Chi
Yuen Andrew.

KRR RIRBAIZER £ AIEE5.28E5. 3316/
VESZEETHITHEAMESE -BXE
EgrIBHEABEERERASE ZHBH
HEARANIBETGE AR EERFER
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The audit committee held 4 meetings during the year under X EZEEROIBEFRNEITUNS # BiXE
review. Details of the attendance of the audit committee E&&# 2 HEDHEFBHT:
meetings are as follows:
Attendance

Directors = o R
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew HERTAE 4/4
Mr. Liang Zhi Li RESFE 4/4
Mr. Bi Keyun ERaftE (RZE—=F

(appointed on 4 February 2013) “AMBEZE) 4/4

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results and
audited annual results for the year ended 31 December 2013
had been reviewed by the audit committee during the year
under review, which was of the opinion that the preparation of
such results complied with the applicable accounting standards
and requirements and that adequate disclosure had been made.
The audited consolidated results of the Group for the year had
been reviewed by the audit committee.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of accounts, and confirm that the financial
statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief and having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any undisclosed material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Hung Ching Yuen was appointed as the company secretary
on 13 June 2011. Ms.
service provider to the Company and a solicitor practicing in

Hung Ching Yuen is an external

Hong Kong. She has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training as required by the GEM Listing Rules.
The primary contact person between the Company and Ms.
Hung Ching Yuen is Mr. Jiang Maoping, officer responsible for
compliance and legal matters.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted a review of its system of internal
control periodically to ensure an effective and adequate
internal control system. The Company convened meetings
periodically to discuss financial, operational, compliance and
risk management control.

AUDITOR

During the year under review, the performance of the external
auditor of the Company had been reviewed and it is proposed
to reappoint the external auditor at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders
and potential investors. The Company welcomes suggestions
from investors, stakeholders and the public. The Company
has disclosed all necessary information to the shareholders
and investors in compliance with GEM Listing Rules and uses
a number of formal communications channels to account to
shareholders and investors for the Company. These include
(1) the publication of announcements and notices, financial
information and corporate governance information available
on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the
Company; (2) the annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting provide a forum for shareholders of the
Company to raise comments and exchange views with the
Board; (3) information@akmcompany.com, an email specifically
set up by the Company for communications with investors and
provide timely replies to the enquires from investors; (iv) the
provision of services for shareholders through the Company’s
registered office and share registrar in Hong Kong.

There was no significant change in the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2013.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Pursuant to Articles 65 of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association, the Directors may, whenever they
think fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting, and
extraordinary general meeting shall also be convened upon
request by shareholders of the Company as provided by the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (with effect
from 3 March 2014), or, in default, may be convened by the
shareholders requesting the convening of an extraordinary
general meeting.
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According to Sections 566 to 568 of the new Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622) which has become effective on 3
March 2014, the Directors are required to call a extraordinary
general meeting if the Company has received requests to do
so from shareholders of the Company representing at least 5%
of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having a right
to vote at general meetings. Shareholders of the Company
may deposit at the registered office of the Company a written
request, which must state the general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the meeting, include the text of the
resolution to be proposed at the meeting, and must be signed
by the shareholders who made the demand. If the Directors do
not, within twenty one days from the date of depositing the
demand, duly convene an extraordinary general meeting to be
held on a day not later than 28 days after the date on which
the notice convening the meeting is given, the shareholders
who made the demand or shareholders representing more than
half of the voting rights of such shareholders may convene an
extraordinary general meeting themselves in the same manner,
as nearly as possible, as that in which extraordinary general
meetings may be convened by the Directors of the Company,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the shareholders who
made the request as a result of the failure of the Directors to
duly convene an extraordinary general meeting shall be repaid
to them by the Company.

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings under the Articles
of Association of the Company or the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Shareholders who wish to
move a resolution may request the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting following the procedures set out
in the preceding paragraph.

In relation to proposing a person for election as a director,
please refer to the procedures available on the website of the
Company.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the Company’s registered office in
Hong Kong at Rooms 2708-11, 27th Floor, West Tower, Shun
Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.
Shareholders may also send such enquiries and concerns to
information@akmcompany.com, email specifically set up by the
Company for communications with investors.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their
annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s principal activities are the manufacture and sale
of flexible printed circuit, sourcing and sale of electronic
components as well as the manufacture and sale of flexible
packaging substrates. An analysis of the Group's turnover by
geographical market of its customers and operating segments
for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and is
engaged in sourcing of raw materials and equipment for its
subsidiaries and trading of flexible printed circuit and flexible
packaging substrates. The activities of its principal subsidiaries
is set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 54.

The Directors do not recommend a payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: HK1 cent per
share). The total amount of dividend appropriated, based on
the number of shares in issue, is HK$0 (the total amount of
dividend paid in 2012 was HK$5,499,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year under review in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company
are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
26 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date
of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng (Chairman)

Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Li Ying Hong

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Meng Weiwei
Mr. Gong Jiantang (appointed on 27 January 2014)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew

Mr. Liang Zhi Li

Mr. Bi Keyun (appointed on 4 February 2013)

Mr. Wang Heng Yi (resigned on 4 February 2013)

Pursuant to Article 101 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three
or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
exceeding one-third, shall retire from office, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. The Directors to retire in every year shall be
those who have been longest in office since their last election.
Accordingly, Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng and Mr. Hung Chi Yuen
Andrew shall retire by rotation at the annual general meeting
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng and Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew will
retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
annual general meeting.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF
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Pursuant to Article 92 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
the Board shall have power from time to time, and at any time
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a vacancy or
as an addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed shall
hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
that meeting. Mr. Gong Jiantang, a non-executive Director
appointed by the Board on 27 January 2014 will also retire
and being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the annual
general meeting.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years and
thereafter will continue until being terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other. Each of the non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors has been appointed by the Company
under a letter of appointment for a term of three years which
is terminable by not less than three month’s prior notice in
writing served by either party on the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Details of the Directors and chief executives’ remuneration are
set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to written resolutions of the then shareholders of
the Company on 6 August 2004, the Company adopted a Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Scheme”) and another
share option scheme (the “Scheme”). Particulars of the Pre-
IPO Scheme and the Scheme are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements. During the year ended 31
December 2013, no options were granted under the Scheme.
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Details of the movements in the number of options during the

year which have been granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme are as

follows:

4 AR IR T AT B8 AR R B I B AR B
BHEHMT

Number of share options

BREHE
Name or category Exercise price Outstanding  Lapsed during Outstanding
of participant Date of grant Exercisable period per share at 1.1.2013 the year  at 31.12.2013
R-B-=% R-Z-=%
-B-H +ZA=t+-H
SEERELER RiLAH TEEE BRITRE i RAT ERAN i K176
(Note 1) (Notes 1 & 2) HKS
(Brit1) (H1kR2) BT
Directors
Bz
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng  6.8.2004 18.8.2005 t0 6.8.2014 0.4 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
BRI AE “ZEMENARA “ETRE\ATN\RE
“Z-WENARE
Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang 6.8.2004 18.8.2005 t0 6.8.2014 0.4 2,800,000 - 2,800,000
EL bt “ZEMENARA “ETRE\ATN\RE
“Z-WENARE
Ms. Li Ying Hong 6.8.2004 18.8.2005 t0 6.8.2014 0.4 600,000 - 600,000
FRaxt “ZEMENARA “ETRE\A+N\RE
“Z-WENARE
5,400,000 - 5,400,000
Employees 6.8.2004 18.8.2005 t0 6.8.2014 0.4 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
EE “ZEMENARA “ETRE\ATN\RE
“ZE-[ENARE
Total 8,400,000 - 8,400,000
@t
Notes: BiEt -
1. All dates are shown in the sequence of day.month.year. 1. FEBHHIEFAF A -BEAERTR-
2. These share options are exercisable, starting from the first anniversary of 2. ZEBERETAS LTEHEBEEERHEBREER

the listing date at stepped annual increments of 25% of the total options
granted, for a period of not later than 10 years from the date of grant.

38 AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARAQF
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Details of the movements in the number of options during FARARBHERL CBRESEEHFBEN
the year which have been granted under the Scheme are as N
follows:

Number of share options

BREHE
Exercised
Name or category Exercise price Outstanding during  Lapsed during Outstanding
of participant Date of grant  Exercisable period per share at 1.1.2013 the year the year at 31.12.2013
R-B-=% R=B-=%
-A-8 +ZA=+-H
SREMLEAER &iti B TEHE BRATEE i K176 ERETE FREN e R AT 6
(Note 1) (Notes 1 & 2) HK$ (Note 3)
(Hit1) (Hi#1R2) B (H53)
Directors
Bz
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng 9.7.2007 10.7.2007 t0 9.7.2017 0.36 2,000,000 (2,000,000) - -
BRFEEYE ZTTtF  ZTTLFLATAZE
tANE S =
Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang 9.7.2007 10.7.2007 t0 9.7.2017 0.36 2,000,000 (2,000,000) - -
RERLE i 2 “ZTHFLATAE
tANR “Z-+t5tANA
Ms. Li Ying Hong 9.7.2007 10.7.2007 t0 9.7.2017 0.36 2,000,000 (2,000,000) - -
YN ZERtE “TT+FLATAE
tAhE “T—+t5tANA
Mr. Liang Zhi Li 9.7.2007 10.7.2007 t0 9.7.2017 0.36 800,000 (800,000) - -
REVESE S 3 “ZZ+FLATRE
tANE S =
Mr. Wang Heng Yi 9.7.2007 10.7.2007 t0 9.7.2017 0.36 800,000 - (800,000) -
(Note 4)
TEERE (W) “2%+F —TZt¥tATRE
tANR “Z-+5tANA
7,600,000 (6,800,000) (800,000) -
Employees 9.7.2007 10.7.2007 t0 9.7.2017 0.36 9,200,000 (3,100,000) - 6,100,000
ES “2%+F —TEt¥tATRE
tANRA “Z-+5tANA
Total 16,800,000 (9,900,000) (800,000) 6,100,000
Foh
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Notes:
1. All dates are shown in the sequence of day.month.year.
2. These share options are exercisable, starting from the day after the date

upon which the options were granted, for a period of not later than 10
years from the date of grant.

3. On 23 May 2013, an aggregate of 9,900,000 shares of the Company were
issued by the Company to such Directors and employees pursuant to the
exercise of their respective share options.

4. Mr. Wang Heng Yi resigned as an independent non-executive Director
on 4 February 2013 and on the same day, 800,000 share options of the
Company held by him also lapsed.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their spouses
and children under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for
the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right

during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2013, none of
the Directors and the chief executive and their respective
associates had or was deemed to have any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQO")), as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM")
of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF
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(@) The Company

(i) Interest in shares of the Company

(a) =27

Class and number of

() RERGRGZEZ

Approximate
percentage of

Name of shares of total issued share
the Company which interested Long/ capital in the Company
in which (other than under short as at 31 December
Name interest is held equity derivatives)  Capacity position 2013 (Note 5)
R-B-=%
+tZA=+-H
RiER LR N
REM AR HRIREE BERITREAZ
#e A (REFTETARS) 56 #e/%E BABD (Hrit5)
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng the Company 16,750,000  Beneficial owner Long 3.05
(Note 1) ordinary shares
REBTE (1) NS 16,750,000 &K EHERA e
Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang the Company 13,500,000  Beneficial owner Long 2.45
(Note 2) ordinary shares
SEREE (Hri2) NS 13,500,000 &&K  EHERA e
Ms. Li Ying Hong the Company 4,700,000  Beneficial owner Long 0.85
(Note 3) ordinary shares
FRATL (H73) NS 4,700,000 BB EREBA e
Mr. Liang Zhi Li (Note 4) the Company 800,000  Beneficial owner Long 0.15
ordinary shares
RENFKAE (Hiita) NS 800,000 EBE EHREAA e
Annual Report 2013 —ZE—=Ff3f
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Notes:

AKM Industrial

On 23 May 2013, an aggregate of 2,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company were issued to Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng
pursuant to the exercise of all the share options granted to
him by the Company, at an exercise price of HK$0.36 per
share. Moreover, during the period from 15 May 2013 to 13
June 2013, Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng acquired an aggregate of
560,000 ordinary shares of the Company in open market at
prices ranging from HK$0.315 to HK$0.34 per share. Since
13 June 2013, Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng has been the beneficial
owner of an aggregate of 16,750,000 ordinary shares of the
Company.

On 23 May 2013, an aggregate of 2,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company were issued to Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang pursuant
to the exercise of all the share options granted to him by the
Company, at an exercise price of HK$0.36 per share. Since
23 May 2013, Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang has been the beneficial
owner of an aggregate of 13,500,000 ordinary shares of the
Company.

On 23 May 2013, an aggregate of 2,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company were issued to Ms. Li Ying Hong pursuant
to the exercise of all the share options granted to her by the
Company, at an exercise price of HK$0.36 per share. Since 23
May 2013, Ms. Li Ying Hong has been the beneficial owner of
an aggregate of 4,700,000 ordinary shares of the Company.

On 23 May 2013, an aggregate of 800,000 ordinary shares
of the Company were issued to Mr. Liang Zhi Li pursuant to
the exercise of all the share options granted to him by the
Company, at an exercise price of HK$0.36 per share. Since 23
May 2013, Mr. Liang Zhi Li has been the beneficial owner of an
aggregate of 800,000 ordinary shares of the Company.

On 27 January 2014, the Company completed the Shares
Subscription and the Placing of Shares, and had allotted and
issued a total of 290,920,000 shares of the Company to
Goertek (HongKong) Co., Limited (“HK Goertek”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of GoerTek, pursuant to the nomination of
GoerTek, and had placed a total of 132,150,000 shares of the
Company to not less than six placees on the same date. The
total number of issued shares of the Company was therefore
increased from 549,900,000 shares to 972,970,000 shares.
Since 27 January 2014, the 16,750,000 shares of the Company
held by Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng represents approximately
1.72% of the shares in issue of the Company; the 13,500,000
shares of the Company held by Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang represents
approximately 1.39% of shares in issue of the Company; the
4,700,000 shares of the Company held by Ms. Li Ying Hong
represents approximately 0.48% of shares in issue of the
Company; the 800,000 shares of the Company held by Mr.
Liang Zhi Li represents approximately 0.08% of shares in issue
of the Company.
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(ii) Interest in the underlying shares of the Company

(i) URFGTETRAFEZELAIEHER

through equity derivatives 2w
Approximate
Class and number of percentage of
Name of underlying shares total issued share
the Company held under Long/ capital in the Company
Name of in which physically settled short as at 31 December
Director interest is held equity derivatives  MNofes  Capacity position 2013 (Note 5)
R-ZB-=%
MS%ﬁﬁz -|-:)E]E-|-_E|
RATETR ERAR2H
REREERERZ BEZHBRSG BRTRAZ
EEpA ARER EARER Wid BB #E/ %R BABD (Writs)
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng  the Company 2,000,000 7&2  Beneficial owner Long 0.36
ordinary shares
RIEBEAE NG 2,000,000 E®  1R2  EREBA R
Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang the Company 2,800,000 7&3  Beneficial owner Long 0.51
ordinary shares
REBRELE NG 2,800,000 E® 7R3  EREBA R
Ms. Li Ying Hong the Company 600,000 7&4  Beneficial owner Long 0.11
ordinary shares
FRaLT NG 600,000 @R 184 EREBA R
Notes: Wt iF

1. The interest of each of Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng, Ms. Li Ying
Hong and Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang in the underlying ordinary shares

of the Company represents the share options to subscribe for

shares in the Company at a subscription price of HK$0.40 per

share granted to him/her under the Pre-IPO Scheme of the

Company, and the number of shares held by them remains

unchanged since the date of grant on 6 August 2004.

2. Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng is interested in 16,750,000 issued shares
of the Company and 2,000,000 underlying shares held under

equity derivatives.

1. RRIEESES FRAL T REEREER
AARZEBEBROT OIS 2 #H
BIRBARA 2 LA T &5 B
FTREZBERE AREESR40ET
REARBZRD ERA2BEREHE
BEREE_ZZWF N\ ANERARE&E

B o

2. ARIEIE %A TA16,750,00008 A 7 B 317
B0 R A RR A 474 T A %55 22,000,000

PRARBER D B MR
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Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang is interested in 13,500,000 issued shares
of the Company and 2,800,000 underlying shares held under
equity derivatives.

Ms. Li Ying Hong is interested in 4,700,000 issued shares of
the Company and 600,000 underlying shares held under equity
derivatives.

On 27 January 2014, the Company completed the Shares
Subscription and the Placing of Shares, and had allotted and
issued a total of 290,920,000 shares of the Company to HK
Goertek, a wholly-owned subsidiary of GoerTek, pursuant
to the nomination of GoerTek, and had placed a total of
132,150,000 shares of the Company to not less than six
placees on the same date. The total number of issued shares
of the Company was therefore increased from 549,900,000
shares to 972,970,000 shares. Since 27 January 2014, the
2,000,000 underlying shares of the Company interested by
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng represents approximately 0.21% of the
shares in issue of the Company; the 2,800,000 underlying
shares of the Company interested by Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang
represents approximately 0.29% of the shares in issue of the
Company; the 600,000 underlying shares of the Company
interested by Ms. Li Ying Hong represents approximately
0.06% of the shares in issue of the Company.

(b) The associated corporation

As at 31 December 2013, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, none of the Directors nor chief executive of
the Company had or was deemed to have any interests
or short positions in the shares or the underlying shares
or debentures of any associated corporations of the
Company (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO and Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the GEM Listing

Rules.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share options disclosed above, at no time during
the year was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the top five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2013, no person
other than certain Directors or chief executive of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO, or which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO or who were directly or indirectly interested in
5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings
of any members of the Group.
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Class and number of
securities in

which interested
(other than under

Approximate
percentage of

total issued share
capital in the Company

Name of substantial shareholder Capacity equity derivatives) as at 31 December 2013
R-B-=£&
+=B=t+-H
(UFARKSTETER) NN B
TERFEER L) BEzESZERRYE CRETRAZBENESL
(Note 2) (Notes 3 and 4)
(His2) (HfiE3k4)
Alpha Luck Industrial Ltd. Beneficial owner 360,000,000 65.47
("Alpha Luck"”) (Notes 1 & 3) ordinary shares
ZHEERRRA([ZNEE]) ExEBA 360,000,000 % 7 %
(BiE1R3)
Silver City International (Holdings) Ltd. Interest in controlled 360,000,000 65.47
(“Silver City") (Notes 1 & 3) corporation ordinary shares
REBR (£B)BRAR NSk VNI 5 360,000,0000% & i ik
([HREBR]) (WiF1K3)
China North Industries Corporation Interest in controlled 360,000,000 65.47
("CNIC") (Notes 1 & 3) corporation ordinary shares
FESLAIERA([EATE]) N $ ki VNI 5 360,000,0008% & i ik
(He1k3)
Notes: et -
1. This represents the same block of shares of the Company shown against 1. BEILZMEEZ TR R ARBE—HEMD - AR EE

the name of Alpha Luck. Since Alpha Luck is wholly and beneficially owned
by Silver City, Silver City is deemed to be interested in the same number of
shares of the Company held by Alpha Luck under Part XV of the SFO. As
Silver City is wholly and beneficially owned by CNIC, CNIC is deemed to be
interested in the same number of shares of the Company which Silver City

is deemed to be interested under Part XV of the SFO.

2. None of Alpha Luck, Silver City nor CNIC is interested in any securities of 2.

the Company under equity derivatives.
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3. On 27 January 2014, the Company completed the Shares Subscription and
the Placing of Shares, and had allotted and issued a total of 290,920,000
shares of the Company to HK Goertek, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
GoerTek, pursuant to the nomination of GoerTek, and had placed a total
of 132,150,000 shares of the Company to not less than six placees on
the same date. The total number of issued shares of the Company was
therefore increased from 549,900,000 shares to 972,970,000 shares.
Since 27 January 2014, the 360,000,000 shares of the Company held
by Alpha Luck (for which Silver City and CNIC are interested) represents
approximately 37.00% of the shares in issue of the Company.

4. Since 27 January 2014, HK Goertek holds 290,920,000 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 29.90% of the shares in issue of
the Company. Since HK Goertek is wholly-owned by Weifang Goertek
Trading Co., Limited (“Weifang Goertek”), which is, in turn, wholly-owned
by GoerTek, each of Weifang Goertek and GoerTek is also deemed to be
interested in the 290,920,000 shares of the Company held by HK Goertek
under Part XV of the SFO since 27 January 2014.

RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2013 comprised the retained
profits of HK$73,074,000.

Details of changes in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 58 and note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CONFIRMATIONS OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Based on such confirmation, the Company considers that all of

its independent non-executive Directors are independent.
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Details of the Group's retirement benefits schemes for the
year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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& ARRQFA $£132,150,0000 815 AR A R BB B ITIE
1 #a 2 A 1t 1549,900,0000% 12 A Z£972,970,000/% °
BT NMFE—A-++tB# 2FEEFEAQA
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the
schemes are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions of pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount
of turnover attributable to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for approximately 51% of the Group’s turnover
and the turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 15% of the Group’s turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount
of purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 41% of the Group’ s purchases
and the purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier
accounted for approximately 11% of the Group’s purchases.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF
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During the year under review, the Company entered into the
Subscription Agreement with GoerTek (a customer of the
Company) on 27 November 2013. After the completion of the
Shares Subscription on 27 January 2014, HK Goertek (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of GoerTek) holds a total of 290,920,000
shares of the Company (representing approximately 29.90%
of the shares in issue of the Company), each of HK Goertek,
Weifang Goertek and GoerTek became a substantial
shareholder of the Company since 27 January 2014. Mr.
Gong lJiantang (being a director of GoerTek) was nominated
by GoerTek as a non-executive Director of the Company
pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, and was appointed
by the Company on 27 January 2014. Details about the Shares
Subscription have been disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 27 November 2013, 27 December 2013 and
27 January 2014.

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors, their
respective associates nor any shareholder (who or which to the
best knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company) has any interest in the top
five customers and top five suppliers of the Group during the
year under review.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors nor their respective associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business
which causes or may cause significant competition with the
business of the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 2 April 2013, AKM Electronic Technology (Suzhou)
Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a Purchase Agreement (“Purchase Agreement”)
with GoerTek, pursuant to which, the Group sold parts,
components and other products (including but not limited
to FPC products) (“Subject Transactions”) to GoerTek, for an
initial term of one year which shall be automatically renewed
for successive terms of one year until being terminated by
either party by two months’ written notice in advance, before
the expiration of that initial term. After the completion of the
Shares Subscription on 27 January 2014, HK Goertek (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of GoerTek) holds a total of 290,920,000
shares of the Company (representing approximately 29.90%
of the shares in issue of the Company), each of HK Goertek,
Weifang Goertek and GoerTek became a substantial
shareholder and connected person of the Company since
27 January 2014, and pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules,
all existing and continuing transactions contemplated under
the Purchase Agreement between the Group and GoerTek
have become continuing connected transactions after the
completion of the Shares Subscription. Pursuant to Rule 20.41
of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company is required to comply
with the applicable reporting, announcement, annual review
and disclosure requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules regarding the continuing connected transactions.
Details about the Shares Subscription have been disclosed in
announcements of the Company dated 27 November 2013, 27
December 2013 and 27 January 2014.

On 11 March 2014, the Company (for itself and on behalf
of its subsidiaries) entered into a new framework purchase
agreement (“New Purchase Agreement”) with GoerTek (for
itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) in relation to the
Subject Transactions for a term commencing from 3 April
2014 and expiring on 31 December 2016 which will become
effective upon the approval of the independent shareholders
of the Company. As GoerTek is a substantial shareholder
of the Company, the Subject Transactions constitute non-
exempt continuing connected transactions (“Continuing
Connected Transactions”) of the Company and are subject to
the reporting, announcement, annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval under the GEM Listing Rules. Details
of the New Purchase Agreement, the Continuing Connected
Transactions and the annual caps proposed by the Company
have been disclosed in an announcement of the Company
dated 11 March 2014.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF
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Save as disclosed in this report, during the year ended 31
December 2013, there was no connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction entered into by the Company
as defined under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules which
were subject to the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the GEM Listing
Rules. The related party transactions set out in note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements of the Company that
constituted connected transactions are exempted from the
reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution will
be submitted to the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

AKM Industrial Company Limited
Xiong Zheng Feng

CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 12 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M % BRD R S

Deloitte.
4ds

&

TO THE MEMBERS OF AKM INDUSTRIAL COMPANY LIMITED
REFNEXARAA
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
AKM Industrial Company Limited (the “"Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 54 to 155, which comprise the consolidated and the
Company’s statements of financial position as at 31 December
2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity's preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group's profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
12 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Htt 2 HE W& KR

AR —E—=—FEf =1 —HIFEZ

2013 2012
—E—-=F —ET—_4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 FTET FAETT
Revenue WA 5 641,159 600,686
Cost of sales 85 B AN (552,804) (507,521)
Gross profit EF 88,355 93,165
Other income Ha g A 6 10,326 3,838
Distribution costs S| N (12,048) (12,270)
Administrative expenses T (25,130) (27,643)
Research and EEE R
development expenses (22,589) (12,648)
Share of result of a joint venture JEih—MAELRRIZEE - (3,301)
Finance costs & AR 7 (5,406) (6,458)
Profit before taxation R B B i A 8 33,508 34,683
Taxation g 9 (2,041) (2,146)
Profit for the year INF E 31,467 32,537
Other comprehensive income: /H\ﬁﬂi\@uﬁ(* :
ltem that may be subsequently BRI EMR Y BEER S
reclassified to profit or loss: HE :
Exchange differences arising on BREBINEBREEZ
translation of PEH Z%E
foreign operation 9,584 1,768
Total comprehensive income AFEE2HEM L
for the year 41,051 34,305
Profit for the year attributable to: & {24 & i F :
Owners of the Company KABHE A 30,301 32,449
Non-controlling interests FEFE I AE 1,166 88
31,467 32,537
Total comprehensive income JEEEmWE (XY )88
(expense) attributable to:
Owners of the Company PIN/NETEF =N 39,853 34,384
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR M A 1,198 (79)
41,051 34,305
Earnings per share G & A 12
— basic —EK HK5.55 cents3& 4l HK6.01 centsi# Il
— diluted —f#E HK5.53 cents# L HK6.01 cents;& il

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R BRI R &

At 31 December 2013 R-ZFE—=F+_H=+—H

2013 2012
—E—= T 4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ez FERT FET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WEREE 13 306,265 218,118
Prepaid lease payments FENHEENRIEA 4 57,994 57,708
Deposits for acquisition of WY BREREEZ
property, plant and equipment Ze 2,461 2,687
366,720 278,513
Current assets mENE B
Inventories Ve 6 74,828 69,239
Trade and other receivables 5 NEMEWFIE 17 167,594 164,400
Prepaid lease payments FENHEENRIEA 4 1,353 1,316
Amount due from FEW — R N IER
an intermediate UNSIE/Q|
holding company 22 - 300
Pledged bank deposits EHEFIRITER 18 2,355 2,354
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 19 42,177 47,821
288,307 285,430
Current liabilities mENBE
Trade and other payables g 5 M H MR 20 167,903 158,639
Deferred income PRIEU A 21 855 4,413
Amount due to ultimate holding FES B 4 B A B SRR
company 22 - 995
Amount due to a fellow e —RIR XM B
subsidiary N AFIE 22 - 121
Taxation payable JET AR I8 5,377 4,461
Bank borrowings HITEE 23 111,518 72,863
Loan from ultimate holding BEERARZER
company 24 1,023 995
286,676 242,487
Net current assets FmMEEE 1,631 42,943
Total assets less current liabilities MEERTHAG 368,351 321,456
Annual Report 2013 —ZE—=Ff3f
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R &

At 31 December 2013 R-ZFE—=F+_H=+—H

2013 2012
= —EF——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FERT FET
Capital and reserves s AR K%
Share capital [N 26 54,990 54,000
Reserves & 224,430 187,502
Equity attributable to owners of NATHER ANERER
the Company 279,420 241,502
Non-controlling interests SRR HE 3,423 2,225
Total equity B 282,843 243,727
Non-current liabilities FnBBEE
Deferred income PRIEU A 21 31,218 31,188
Loans from an intermediate —ME RN ER
holding company RNEIZER 22 38,775 44,760
Loan from ultimate holding SR AR ZE R
company 24 - 995
Bank borrowings BITEE 23 14,801 -
Deferred taxation EIEF IR 25 714 786
85,508 77,729
368,351 321,456

The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 155 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
12 March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

LI YING HONG
DIRECTOR

FHRAL
EFE
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Statement of Financial Position
Bt 7 AR R 3R

As at 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=#+_-_H=+—H

2013 2012
—E-=F T
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
Jioka FTET FAETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WEREE 13 47 29
Interests in subsidiaries N NG ol 3 15 273,582 268,772
273,629 268,801
Current assets MENEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H MW GRIA 17 49,453 49,934
Amounts due from a subsidiary JFE W — I BT B8 A RIRIB 15 14,972 15,827
Amount due from intermediate JE U AR R B A R FRIE
holding company 23 - 300
Taxation receivable FE UL FR 18 399 -
Pledged bank deposits EHEFRITER 18 2,355 2,354
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 19 16,675 6,075
83,854 74,490
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk E MR 20 2,612 2,553
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE 1 BT B8 2 R 3R E 15 104,401 110,917
Bank borrowings |ITEE 23 10,148 298
Taxation payable FERTBIIE = 188
117,161 113,956
Net current liabilities FnEaE (33,307) (39,466)
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERAREEE 240,322 229,335
Capital and reserves A& A K%
Share capital fig 7% 26 54,990 54,000
Reserves ] 28 131,756 130,575
Total equity R 186,746 184,575
Non-current liabilities IERBEE
Loans from an intermediate —MENERARZ
holding company B 22 38,775 44,760
Bank borrowings RITIEE 23 14,801 =
53,576 44,760
240,322 229,335
LI YING HONG XIONG ZHENG FENG
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
ZHRAL BEIF &
EBZ EZE
Annual Report 2013 —ZE—=Ff3f
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ERBEHHME

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - ZE—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADREBAEGER
Share Non-
Share Share Translation  options Retained controlling

capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total interests Total

RE  ROEE RERE BRERE REEN B FERER ot

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

FET FTHT THT FET TET THET T FET

At 1 January 2012 - —¥-8-H 54,000 53,868 61,848 2,475 34,927 207,118 3,326 210,444

Profit for the year AEERT - - - - 32,449 32,449 88 32,537

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 37) HEWBRR (Hi31) - - (3,848) - 3,848 (1,022) (1,022)

Other comprehensive income (expense) ~ Ef2E % (%) - - 1,935 - - 1,935 (167) 1,768
Total comprehensive (expense) income ~ AEE 2 (B %)Y

for the year - - (1,913) - 36,297 34,384 (1,101) 33,283

Lapse of share options BRI - - - (157) 157 - - -

At 31 December 2012 - —#+=-A=1+—H 54,000 53,868 59,935 2,318 71,381 241,502 2,225 243,727

Profit for the year AE R - - - - 30,301 30,301 1,166 31,467

Other comprehensive income Hip 2 A - - 9,552 - - 9,552 32 9,584
Total comprehensive income AEEREANELEE

for the year - - 9,552 - 30,301 39,853 1,198 41,051

Exercise and lapse of share options BREETERAX 990 3,544 - (1,048) 78 3,564 - 3,564

Dividend paid (note 71) BRBRE (HiE11) - - - - (5,499) (5,499) - (5,499)

At 31 December 2013 ZZ-Zf+ZHA=t-H 54,990 57,412 69,487 1,270 96,261 279,420 3,423 282,843

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nv—_ﬁ | Iﬁ:ﬁ/)lbi '%E

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - F—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2013 2012
—E—-=F —FT——F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
W&t FERT FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RExK
Profit before taxation B 35 A& 33,508 34,683
Adjustments for: HTIEBEELAE:
Interest expense MEXZ 5,406 6,458
Interest income FEWA (122) (310)
Share of result of a joint venture EE—EEERACEE - 3,301
(Reversal of) allowance AR (BERE)#E
for doubtful debts (951) 1,138
Allowance for obsolete REFERE
inventories 3,223 2,935
Amortisation of prepaid lease TN ERIBH
payments 1,334 1,310
Bad debts recovered Uk o] 122 BR = (311)
Depreciation of property, ME- -WEREE o ITE
plant and equipment 29,970 24,727
Foreign exchange difference SBRARRIEEGRLZ
on inter-company balances N ER 2,182 389
(Gain) loss on disposal of HEWE BERREZ
property, plant and equipment (Yas) B4R (14) 1
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE— B A E 2 e - (203)
Deferred income recognised R EERA (6,367) (1,460)
Operating cash flows before BEeE R
movements in working capital fﬁ@mug 68,169 72,768
Increase in inventories FE®EM (6,899) (28,891)
Increase in trade and B 5 & H i FE UGN IB IS hn
other receivables (1,432) (22,338)
(Decrease) increase in amount due  JE{t S &R A T 0 IE
to ultimate holding company OB ) 18 (995) 991
Decrease in amount due to ER—HaERrFZ
a joint venture FIER D = (2,491)
Increase in trade and other payables & 5 K E i & < 2k 18 1 hn 6,419 50,587
Government grant received T 2 B WA 1,892 3,828
Cash generated from operations KEFFRS 67,154 74,454
Interest paid EAA A (5,406) (6,458)
Profits tax (paid) refunded (B ERENER (1,206) 123
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB EMSH (187) (903)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING REXBHEREFE
ACTIVITIES 60,355 67,216
Annual Report 2013 —ZE—=Ff3f
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - ZE—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2013 2012
—E—-=F T4
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FER AT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXH
Interest received BUF B 122 310
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - WER&E
property, plant and equipment Fr1S 3K I18 27 679
Purchase of property, BEWE BEL&E
plant and equipment (111,485) (32,754)
(Placement) release of EHEMRITER (3Eh0) m D
pledged bank deposits (1) 24,870
Net proceeds from disposal of HE—EREARME
a subsidiary SRIBFEE 37 2,229 9,565
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM KEER () S
INVESTING ACTIVITIES e FEE (109,108) 2,670
FINANCING ACTIVITIES g
New borrowings raised it EE 290,141 203,032
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (239,117) (233,649)
Decrease in amount due from (to) UL (BN ) —RE A
an intermediate holding company % A &) 2 7} I8 g 301 (348)
Decrease in amount due to f‘éﬁ BIEEY
a fellow subsidiary B AR (121) -
Repayment of loan from ultimate 1,%? EHRIERRFZER
holding company (995) (991)
Dividend paid ERRE (5,499) -
Repayment of loan from BE R NMERRAF
an intermediate holding company ~ ZEX (6,000) -
Exercise of share options 7T B R 3,564 -
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RMEXBHRES (FE)RS
FINANCING ACTIVITIES g 42,274 (31,956)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN ReRBELEEERB (FHD)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2 hn 7 58 (6,479) 37,930
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHRERREZEEHER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 47,821 9,876
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE SEEERBH 2 HE
RATE CHANGES 835 15
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT E&FRRERHAELEEHIEH
END OF THE YEAR 42,177 47,821
REPRESENTING BN
Bank balances and cash SRITHEBRNIR® 42,177 47,821

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
g A

2N

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - F—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

1.

= B 5 W AR MY A

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability on 9 December 1993.
Its parent is Alpha Luck Industrial Limited (“Alpha Luck”)
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) and
its ultimate holding company is China North Industries
Corporation (“CNIC"), a state-owned enterprise
established in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC").

The shares of the Company were listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market ("GEM") of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect
from 18 August 2004 (“Listing Date”). The registered
office of the Company is situated at Rooms 2708-11, 27th
Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong, and the principal place of
business of the Company is situated at 63 Huan Shi Road
South, Information Technology Park, Nansha District,
Guangzhou City, the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars while the functional currency of the
Company is Renminbi ("RMB"). The reason for selecting
Hong Kong dollars as its presentation currency is because
the Company is a public limited company in Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and
is engaged in sourcing of raw materials and equipment
for its subsidiaries and trading of flexible printed
circuit ("FPC"). Its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in manufacture and sale of FPC, sourcing and sale of
electronic components and manufacture and sale of
flexible packaging substrates (including the encapsulation
of Chip On Film modules (“COF")).

—REH

RRARTDR—AN=ZFE+ZANBEEE
AMRIZ ARAEREERRF -BRAR
ERBEMRL 2 ZMNEXRARAA ([
MEZX]) MEKERART/EFEAR
HME ([HE]) KL 2EAEEFEILT
IERB([EFTIER]) -

ApallRmhBE ZZEEWENATNEB (L
MRS RESEBAEXZHMERA A
(TBE 2 pr)) Bl 2R ([BIZEAR]) £ o AR
RAZ MR ERMLRESTHEF168-
20057 =78 O E2712708-11% » AR
RAZEELEMUMRPREMTED
EAEMBEERTAEME63 -

REMBRRIUNBTEN MARRZ
DREEBASARE (TARKE]) - ZBEUE
THERHEEINEEZRE  JTHRARE
RHBBRRBRAA -

ARRRBREERAR UREREN B
RARBRM A RREARFEERR
(TRMEBRRIDESEE - EWB AR E
ZRFXMHEBRRRERHEE BT
RS ARFMHEERBENEE (2
EERERATHE) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M mRmE

R E - = —HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the

current year:
Amendments to

HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised
in2011)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 cycle

Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

Consolidated financial
statements, joint
arrangements and disclosure
of interests in other entities:
Transition guidance

Consolidated financial
statements

Joint arrangements

Disclosure of interests in other
entities

Fair value measurement

Employee benefits

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M mARME

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - ZF—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

HKAS 27 (as revised
in2011)

Separate financial statements

HKAS 28 (as revised
in2011)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures

Amendments to Presentation of items of other
HKAS 1

HK(IFRIC) — INT 20

comprehensive income
Stripping costs in the production
phase of a surface mine

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures comprising
HKFRS 10 "“Consolidated financial statements”, HKFRS 11
“Joint arrangements”, HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of interests
in other entities”, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) “Separate
financial statements” and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
“Investments in associates and joint ventures”, together
with the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS
12 regarding transitional guidance.

R RAEER] BB M B REE
B([EBUHH/EEN]) (&)

EEGEAE27R  BUMKRER
(RZT——%
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EEGERE28S  RBELRR
(R=—E——F BRARZEE
IBRT)

BEBGIHEUNE IR Hib2EKEERH
Z1&5 513

a5 (EREBHER BABRSEEREN
BZEg) FERPK AR
—2EZE20%

B T XAt & SN RANF R RN Z HFH AT
MBIEFTBAMBREZNHAEENAK
FERBEFE ZWBRERRMA R,
HEGEMBRERMBIEBEENTES

= 480
REE-

BEAR HEZH BMEQLTARKEBEZH
7] R A B FT 2 R

RAFEE AEEEXEA—ELEEH
RAaAR KA BERARAREEZ
hIRER BREEEVH RS ERF 105
[REMBHRER] BEMBEHREEREN
S TRRZHE]  BEPEREERIFE125%
MEMEBER B o BE] FEGE
275 (—F——FKIER]) BT
BRINREBGFTEFE28HK (ZF——
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M mRmE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

The impact of the application of these standards is set out
below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated
and separate financial statements” that deal with
consolidated financial statements and HK(SIC) Int — 12
“Consolidation — Special purpose entities”. HKFRS 10
changes the definition of control such that an investor
has control over an investee when a) it has power over
the investee, b) it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and c) has
the ability to use its power to affect its returns. All three of
these criteria must be met for an investor to have control
over an investee. Previously, control was defined as the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Additional
guidance has been included in HKFRS 10 to explain when
an investor has control over an investee.

The directors of the Company have made an assessment
as at the date of initial application of HKFRS 10 (i.e. 1
January 2013) in respect of the Group’s control in its
subsidiaries under the new definition in the new and
revised HKFRSs and concluded that the application of the
new standards have no impact on the subsidiaries currently
reported in the consolidated financial statements.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARAQF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
g A
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

= B 5 8 AR M A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. The directors of the Company concluded that the
application of HKFRS 12 has had no material impact with
respect to the Group's interests in subsidiaries.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
“Presentation of items of other comprehensive income”.
Upon the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1,
the Group's ‘statement of comprehensive income’ is
renamed as the 'statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income’. Furthermore, the amendments
to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made
in the other comprehensive income section such that
items of other comprehensive income are grouped into
two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis — the amendments do not change the option
to present items of other comprehensive income either
before tax or net of tax. The amendments have been
applied retrospectively, and hence the presentation of
items of other comprehensive income has been modified
to reflect the changes. Other than the above mentioned
presentation changes, the application of the amendments
to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss,
other comprehensive income and total comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MY R

/ For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ—-F—=F+-A=+—HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

Amendments to
HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27

Amendments to
HKAS 19
Amendments to
HKAS 32
Amendments to
HKAS 36
Amendments to
HKAS 39

Mandatory effective date of
HKFRS 9 and transition
disclosures*

Investment entities’

Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions?

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities’

Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets’

Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge
accounting*

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Ft_HA=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (Cont’d)
Amendments to

HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRSs
HKFRS 9

HK(IFRIC) — INT 21

Levies'

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 cycle?

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 cycle?

Financial instruments®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with

limited exceptions.

4 Available for application - the mandatory effective date will be

determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for

the classification and measurement of financial assets.

HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include

the requirements for the classification and measurement

of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further

amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for

hedge accounting.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is
not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting. However, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening
the types of instruments that qualify for hedging
instruments and the types of risk components of non-
financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In
addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled and
replaced with the principle of an ‘economic relationship’.
Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no
longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about
an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

Based on the consolidated statement of financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2013, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the
future is not expected to have a significant impact on the
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved where the Company:

. has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Cont’d)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title are passed, at which time all
the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting policy
for leasing below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Leasehold land and building (Cont’d)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease

and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rationale
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a jointly controlled entity that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those asset until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.
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Taxation (Cont’d)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income and expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s and the Company's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for all deductible temporary difference
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Taxation (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors and employees of the
Company

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting period, the fair value of services
received determined by reference to the fair value of
share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period or recognised
as an expense in full at the grant date when the share
options granted vested immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Share-based payment transactions (Cont’d)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Cont’d)

Share options granted to directors and employees of the
Company (Cont’d)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at that date
of grant, the fair value of the share options grants is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Retirement benefits contributions

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes and state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as an expenses when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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3.

= B 5 W AR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including building held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than properties
under construction as described below) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets or buildings borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Buildings under development for future owner-
occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development
for production or for administrative purposes, the
amortisation of prepaid lease payments provided during
the construction period is included as part of costs of
buildings under construction. Buildings under construction
are carried at cost, less any identified impairment losses.
Depreciation of buildings commences when they are
available for use (i.e. when they are in the location and
condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management).

Impairment loss on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that
they may be impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Impairment loss on tangible assets (Cont’d)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Research and development expenditure (Cont’d)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any),
on the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value is determined as the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARAF

3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

/ For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - ZE—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

FETRE (&)
HRBA (4)

MAMELEZBLEEM S ER L L
BRENEEBRTE LM Z HERIE
HEHMEMELEZASE W TEERA
MEEABLEE AERAXENELH
BARIBRRER -

MPER K NBEEBETLEETIEK
RmRETHE R RETRERBE (WE) -
I 4% B2 P W B B T B EE AR R 2 B E B E R

K

78 AR e B B30 %8 2 8K & JI IR
PRAIZ INAE 105 T AR B - AT 23R F B
BEEZAFTHEBRREME/TET
A BRI E R R 2 AANEE °

TEMITA

TREERTBRABNEEEEN LA
TR T AR ZFINE REAM
FEAR IR R AR

cPREERSRBEVFIURTER
uﬁz,ﬁﬁiﬁﬁéﬁiﬁﬂﬁ@&émﬂﬁﬁé&fﬁ
CRGEARTIR NSRS MAS R EE
HEMBEBEZAFAESKAEF MK (WE
A) e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
g A

2N

For the year ended 31 December 2013

3.

= B 5 W AR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets

The Group's and the Company’s financial assets are
classified as loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables including trade and
other receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries, amount
due from an intermediate holding company, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances and cash are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy in
respect of impairment of financial assets below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
credit period of 30 to 120 days, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEERALF

3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

/ For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - ZE—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

FESFHE (£)
SRMIA (&)
EHEEZHE

ERMEESRHE BRI EETEARED
R ERFBRBBETEMEEZERR
KEEREANNTHRAZEHEERE
EZ-ARZREHMNZIZES A
MEERBSDRIE-

BEZ EBERTBE:

o BOAXIRSHGHEHFHBEEKXRTHA
i)

o B MABEBNIEEBEENRK
VN =i

e BRABRAGEHBRNEXMBER-

RETHEASHMEE (FINE 5 REWKIE)
mME TEEBEHREZEESRHE
BE—HTHRE BRRBEAS HER
BExREFBRRREASE BT W RGEH
HAENBLEEHZ0E1200 2 IEE N &K
2 G PTG N - B SR 5 Hh @ A B AR BR
PSR (HEEWRRICREEER 2B R
7)o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
g A

2N

For the year ended 31 December 2013

3.

= B 5 R AR M A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amounts due to subsidiaries, amount due to ultimate
holding company, amount due to an intermediate holding
company, amount due to a fellow subsidiary, loans from an
intermediate holding company, loan from ultimate holding
company and bank borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Derecognition (Cont’d)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues
to recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on
the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on
the date of the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain
or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4. {43 FfBHBRERZZ2FTERR

In the application of the Group's accounting policies which
are described in note 3, directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are also discussed below.

Estimation of useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment

Management estimates the useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment. The estimated
useful lives and residual values are based on the expected
lifespan of those property, plant and equipment. The
useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment could change significantly as a result of
technical obsolescence. When the actual useful lives and
residual values of property, plant and equipment are
different from their estimated useful lives and residual
values due to the change of commercial and technological
environment, such differences will cause an impact on the
depreciation charges and the amounts of assets written
down for future periods.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment for
the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2013 are
HK$306,265,000 and HK$47,000 (2012: HK$218,118,000
and HK$29,000), respectively.

REBAER 2 &5 B (M EE3RTL)
B AABERAREBEECEMRER
M BENABZREENRDHE - G5t
RR&-NHRERAREHTARERZE
ZHRRE(REHFEH T EAMBRERECE
ENMBEZRAEHRABARZERE
%) IR T X

MK BERREZTAEHRNGHEE
fxt

BEEGEADE BEAERBZAREH
KRFGEE -EEt A BEHRRSKEEN
ZEME BELRBZEAAIBERAS
EAE WX WiE KR 2 7B F 8 R
EBEANEARM EARMERENES-
WYE BELRRBZERAIRFHRR
BREERRXREMREE M AE B RE
AARFEHLRRGER AREEAEY
SRIHEZTEER B LM EER
B

KEBERARAAR _ZE—=ZF+_A4
St+—HzYE - BELRXEEEED
7l £306,265,0007 7T &% 47,000 7T (=
T — —£:218,118,0005 7T }229,000/%5
TT) e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e mARME

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4.

(Cont’d)

Estimated impairment loss recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment

Determining whether property, plant and equipment is
impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the property, plant and
equipment has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
at 31 December 2013 is HK$306,265,000 (2012:
HK$218,118,000), net of accumulated impairment loss
recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment of
HK$3,873,000 (2012: HK$3,873,000).

Allowance for doubtful debts

The management regularly reviews the recoverability and
aging of the trade and bills receivables. Allowances are
applied to trade and bills receivables where events or
changes in circumstances indicated that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful
debts requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Allowance for doubtful debts is made based on the
estimation of the future cash flow discounted at the
financial assets original effective interest rate to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future cash flows and
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will cause an impact on carrying amounts of
trade and bills receivables and doubtful debts expenses in
the year in which such estimate is changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

= B 5 W AR MR

AR LT —=Ff A=+ —HIFEZ

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4. A FBEHPEEZ2TERE (£)

(Cont’d)
Allowance for doubtful debts (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of trade and bills receivables at
31 December 2013 for the Group and the Company
are HK$158,395,000 (2012:HK$153,709,000), net
of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$6,179,000
(2012: HK$7,050,000) and HK$48,510,000 (2012:
HK$45,423,000), net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$508,000 (2012: HK$508,000), respectively.

Allowance for obsolete inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aged analysis
at the end of the reporting period, and makes allowance
for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified
that are no longer suitable for use in production. The
management estimates the net realisable value for such
finished goods and work in progress based primarily on
the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. If
the net realisable value of inventories is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
inventories is reduced to its net realisable value.

The carrying amount of inventories for the Group
as at 31 December 2013 is HK$74,828,000 (2012:
HK$69,239,000), net of allowance for obsolete inventories
of HK$6,177,000 (2012: HK$8,382,000).

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the net amounts received and
receivable for the sales of FPC, electronic components
for surface mount technology, manufacture and sale of
flexible packaging substrates to external customers, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

REREBE (F)

KEBERARAAR _ZE—=ZF+_A8
=+—BZzESRERRERERERER
&% Bl A158,395,00008 L (= — =
1153, 7090005957_1) (FEMBR REREE
6,179,0007% 7t ( = — % :7,050,000
& T0) )&48,510,000,%7“_;:—:
F 145,423,000 7T ) (AL H0BR R ER B 5
508,000/ 7t (=& — — 4 : 508,000/
TT) ) e
REZERE

AEEBERERRS HREZER ST
THERATBEERARNEEZRERS
HEEFL ARG - EEEZTZRERON
ZEREEERBIIMRGHZERA MR
RO EEFE - WEEZAEEF
BEFFTELRERRE MEeZFEZ
B TED B U 2= L AT 3R R (8 -

KEBR-_ZT—Z=ZF+-_A=Z+—82
FERMEE 574,828,000 L (- E——
% :69,239,000/8 ) (KEIMBRMREFTER
1%6,177,000/ 7T (=& — = : 8,382,000
BIT) ) e

WA R 7 EBE#

WABRAEB RN R P #HE R MEER
R REARRM 2 EFTaslt  RERHE
ERUEHERER NRFTHLEBEED
BZBEWR R B FEE -
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e mARME

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z—

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

Segment information

Information reported to the Executive Directors of the

Company, being the chief operating decision makers

("CODM"), for the purpose of resource allocation and

assessment of segment performance focuses on type of

goods delivered.

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised

into three operating divisions, namely the manufacture and

sale of FPC, sourcing and sale of electronic components

and manufacture and sale of flexible packaging substrates.

These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its

segment information to the CODM.

Principal activities are as follows:

FPC business -

Sourcing and sale -
of electronic

the manufacture and sale of FPC

the sourcing and sale of
electronic components

components

business

Flexible packaging
substrates
business (Note)

Note:

the manufacture and sale of

flexible packaging substrates
(including the encapsulation of
COF modules)

The flexible packaging substrates business includes (i) encapsulation
of COF modules; (i) COF films; and (iii) flexible integrated circuits
and module packaging substrates. Since the first quarter of 2013,
orders for other flexible packaging substrates, including COF films
and flexible integrated circuits and module packaging substrates
were received by the Group. As such new products of the Group
adopt similar production technology and share substantially same
production lines with the encapsulation of COF modules, the
encapsulation of COF modules, COF films and flexible integrated
circuits and module packaging substrates are regarded as same
series of products of the Group and are therefore re-named as a
segment of “flexible packaging substrates” to include the original
business of encapsulation of COF modules and to reflect the
expansion of new product lines accordingly.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e mARME

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ—F—=F+-A=+—HIFFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
(Cont’d)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable segment.

WARDEHER (&)

B EBUA K &

REEZRABRRDBEAD 2 RAREES
AT e

Segment Inter-segment Segment
revenue sales Eliminations profit (loss)
AFHBA AHEHE FE AEEF (BB
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
- —Z--F ZB-=f —T--F ZB-=f —FT--F ZB-=fF —T-——-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT FHT FRT FHT FRT FHT FHT FHT
FPC business ZHERRES 539,249 514,722 260,638 273,130 (260,638)  (273,130) 49,248 60,691
Sourcing and sale of electronic ¥ RIEETF LR
components business 89,206 82,917 69,349 69,933 (69,349) (69,933) 6,082 5,573
Flexible packaging substrates  F 114 iR ¥ 5
business 12,704 3,047 - 53 - (53) 5,133 (603)
Total A&t 641,159 600,686 329,987 343,116 (329,987)  (343,116) 60,463 65,661
Interest income FEMWA 122 310
Share of result of a joint venture EIEAE A ZEE - (3,301)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary &M E R R 2 ME - 203
Central administration costs RRITBAAR (21,671) (21,732)
Finance costs BB A (5,406) (6,458)
Profit before taxation B B A g 33,508 34,683

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents the profit (loss)
earned by each segment without allocation of central
administration costs, share of result of a joint venture,
gain on disposal of a subsidiary, interest income and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Executive
Directors, the Group’s CODM, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

EXFRZ MAERBIBEL ZWA -

AR B2 & BRI B 3 2
AEEETHREMAR -2 8EM (BE) 1
En BRI ZmF (BR) - BETeREH
RITHRA - BIE—HEERRIZES W
E-HMBARZ S MERARRE
RAZDE - M2 THITES (AKH
ZEBRERRE)RIEERD EERFHA
REZT3
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/ For the year ended 31 December 2013  #

E=F—SF A+ —AIFE

4 —=

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDHER (£)
(Cont’d)
Segment assets and liabilities THEEHEERE
Segment assets T EEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
FPC business M EIEIRE S 569,542 470,691
Sourcing and sale of electronic KEMEEE T TREHEB
components business 34,180 35,692
Flexible packaging substrates business 2214 & 2 Z AR % 7% 6,773 7,085
Total segment assets woEEE 610,495 513,468
Unallocated assets AOBEE 44,532 50,475
Consolidated assets ReEEE 655,027 563,943
Segment liabilities PHBEE
2013 2012
—E-=F T 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
FPC business FUHERRER 177,525 169,207
Sourcing and sale of electronic RENEEEFTRUEER
components business 21,402 25,248
Flexible packaging substrates business 224 £ 2 E AR ¥ 7% 1,049 780
Total segment liabilities woHEE 199,976 195,235
Unallocated liabilities AP EE 172,208 124,981
Consolidated liabilities maBE 372,184 320,216
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - ZF—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDEHER (£)

(Cont’d)

Segment assets and liabilities (Cont'd) ITHEEHREE (F)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and RESDE2EFAZIBRERDEE

allocating resources between segments: IR

- all assets are allocated to reportable segments other - FBEEHERN HE:.:—I$ Wy Ep
than amount due from an intermediate holding TRIEEK AN TR FIELANE
company, pledged bank deposits and bank balances AR R ﬂ?ﬁy\l%&ﬁﬁﬂmﬁ%&ﬁfﬁ"
and cash.

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments — FMBaEHEIEZEAR®RS I
other than loans from an intermediate holding TEEFANMERAGZER &K%
company, loan from ultimate holding company, bank ARz ER RITHEE  BRNTHIER
borrowings, taxation payable and deferred taxation. IRIEFTIE -

Other segment information HitpBEHR

2013 —E-=F

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss BERGFTEDHERIDIEE 2K

or segment assets:

Sourcing
and sale of Flexible
electronic packaging
FPC components subtracts Segment
business business business total
KBR#EE
FHERR BEfn#ft FHIRER
% % %% AWEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THER TR
(Reversal of) allowance R (BE)EE
for doubtful debts (960) 9 - (951)
Allowance (reversal of allowance) BREFERE (BEEE)
for obsolete inventories 3,494 (220) (51) 3,223

Addition to non-current assets (Note) ~ AEIFETREEE (HiF) 110,398 - 368 110,766

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T8 {7 & 5 TH # & 1,334 - - 1334

Depreciation of property, mE BEREETE

plant and equipment 28,245 75 1,650 29,970

Government grant for research and FBMEEE 2BMER

development projects (6,367) - - (6,367)
Gain on disposal of property, HENE  BERRE KR
plant and equipment (14) - - (14)

Research and development expenses W& & 18,325 - - 18,325

Note: Non-current assets represent property, plant and equipment and Bt : EMDEERYE BERIEARENEE
prepaid lease payments. IR
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/ For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ—-F—=F+-A=+—HIFFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDIER (£)
(Cont’d)
Other segment information (Cont’d) HitppHER (&)
2013 (Cont’d) —E-=F (&)

EHREZRLRRERBZFAEETE
ERAEDMBIERI DI EEZHIE:

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included
in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment

98

assets:

Sourcing
and sale of Flexible
electronic packaging
FPC components subtracts Segment
business business business total
REREE
FUEBRR EFnEH FUHEER
%% %% %% WA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET TET
Interest income FIEMA (110) (9) (3) (122)
Interest expenses FER% 5,406 - - 5,406
Income tax expense FEHAX 975 1,159 - 2,134
Net foreign exchange loss (gain) SNEEIE (Wa) T8 1,038 (648) 107 497
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ—-F—=F+-A=+—HIFFE \

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDHER (&)
(Cont’d)
Other segment information (Cont’d) HitppHER (&)
2012 —E-—&
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss BERGTEDEHER D HEE I

or segment assets:

Sourcing
and sale of Flexible
electronic packaging
FPC components subtracts Segment
business business business total
REREE
FUEBER EFTEt FUHREER
%% %% %% R Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAT FTET TET
Allowance for doubtful debts RRRE 869 269 - 1,138
Allowance for obsolete inventories REFEEE 2,719 115 101 2,935
Addition to non-current assets (Note) ~ AEIFETREEE (HiF) 32,251 - 279 32,530
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments I8 {1 & 78 # 84 1,310 - - 1,310
Bad debts recovered Bz iR 311) - (311)
Depreciation of property, mE BEREENE
plant and equipment 23,095 74 1,558 24,727
Government grant for research and BBWRIER 2B 2E
development projects (1,460) - - (1,460)
Loss on disposal of property, LENE BERSEER
plant and equipment 1M - m
Research and development expenses — HiZ & H 12,648 - - 12,648
Note: Non-current assets represent property, plant and equipment and Wiat: ERBEEREYE BERBREBEURECHE
prepaid lease payments. IE e
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARZEHER (&)
(Cont’d)
Other segment information (Cont’d) HitppHER (&)
2012 (Cont’d) ZEB-ZF(#)
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included EHmEZLERKERME 22”1515 ™8
in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment FEREFTE D HERA D EEE 2K
assets:
Sourcing
and sale of Flexible
electronic packaging
FPC components subtracts Segment
business business business total
RERHEE
FUHEEIR EFTBEN FUHEER
%% 5% %% nEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET FTET FET
Share of loss of a joint venture ElE—HeeRRzER - 3,301 - 3,301
Interest income FIEHA (301) (5) @) (310)
Interest expenses FIEHAX 6,458 - - 6,458
Income tax expense FERAS 905 973 - 1,878
Net foreign exchange loss (gain) HNERE (e ) F8E 837 (228) 131 740
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ—F—=F+-A=+—HIFFE \

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARZEHER (&)
(Cont’d)
Geographical information i & &R
The Group operates in two principal geographical areas — REBRMELXEMEELS —FEH (T
the PRC (excluding Hong Kong) and Hong Kong (country BEB)REE GEMKZHE) - TR
of domicile). The following table provides an analysis TAEEREPUMIBLESI D KEINEE
of the Group's revenue from external customers by the P zWAN DT

geographical location of the customer:

Revenue from
external customers

RENMBEFEZEWA
2013 2012
—E—-= T 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
PRC other than Hong Kong PE (T BEEEE) 370,581 319,911
Hong Kong A 205,427 237,198
Others Hith 65,151 43,577
641,159 600,686
Substantially all of the Group’s non-current assets, AEBZBRBHIERBDEE (BEWE
including property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease B R E A RIERH & FKIB) R
payments, are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no non- BN - EHit - WEZ2T B EE 5 2
current assets by geographical location is presented. ERBEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e mARKE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

Information about major customers

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are

WARDEHER (&)

EHRXEREFZEHR

RBERFEAAEEHERLRTHEI0%
BERlzEPBAMT

as follows:

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Customer A' =P 95,201 92,406
Customer B’ TR 87,938 131,809
Customer C' BEA 74,654 -2

! Revenue from manufacture and sale of FPC.

2 The corresponding customer did not contribute over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group in 2012.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ—-F—=F+-A=+—HILFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HAbWA
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Bad debts recovered [REGEIR= - 311
Reversal of allowance for REBBERD
doubtful debts 951 -
Release of government grant IR A i 2 R
for construction of factory i % B2 BT 2 B
on existing land 843 828
Government grant for research and EIE B 2 BUT 2L
development projects 5,524 632
Government subsidies BT & B 1,357 -
Interest income FEWA 122 310
Gain on disposal of property, HEWHE WEREHE 2
plant and equipment & 14 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEWB QR 2=
(note 31) (KtiE31) - 203
Rental income He WA 151 349
Write-back of long outstanding B R BIR (B R B 5RR
payables - 125
Scrap income BE R 456 527
Sourcing income HEWA 60 257
Patent income HRREBA 631 -
Others Hith 217 296
10,326 3,838
FINANCE COSTS 7. BERAK
2013 2012
—E—-=F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Interests on: A
Bank borrowings wholly ARAFANTEEEZ
repayable within five years RITEE 3,882 5,194
Other borrowings wholly HARAFANBEEE
repayable within five years HMEE 1,524 1,264
Total borrowing costs BEKAARE 5,406 6,458
Annual Report 2013 —ZE—=FF{ 103



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MY R

/ For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - ZE—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. PBRHLAIEF
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Profit before taxation has been BB RDE M E R (FFA)
arrived at after charging (crediting): WTIER
Research and development expenses fEsE A
Staff costs 8 TR 7,067 1,609
Other research and Hib s A
development expenses 15,522 11,039
22,589 12,648
Directors’ and chief executive's EERFETHRAEME
remuneration (Note 10) (Ktit10) 2,277 902
Other staff costs == N 85,469 74,118
Other staff’s retirement benefits costs  E fih 8 T 7 iE /K48 F| A% 2 6,413 3,819
Total staff costs BIKANEE 94,159 78,839
Less: Other staff costs included in WERTA LN RIS ER 2
research and development Hh B TRA
expenses shown above (7,067) (1,609)
87,092 77,230
(Reversal of) allowance for RER (BD) B E
doubtful debts (951) 1,138
Amortisation of prepaid lease T8+ 78 & 5K I8 # 85
payments 1,334 1,310
Auditor’s remuneration % ERAT BN & 740 710
Cost of inventories recognised ERRAMZI 2 FEMSR
as an expense (Note) (H#) 552,804 507,521
Depreciation of property, ME- -BERZRHITE
plant and equipment 29,970 24,727
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEME BENLEREZ
plant and equipment (=) B8 (14) 111
Minimum lease payments under THREFEEHREETZ
operating leases in respect of =REE
land and buildings 479 614
Net foreign exchange losses HNEE B 18 R R 497 740
Shipping and handling expenses BBHRTFEE
(included in distribution costs) (T AP SHAA) 1,259 1,315
Note. The amount includes allowance for obsolete inventories of Kist: ©ERERERER#ES 223,000 T (=%
HK$3,223,000 (2012: HK$2,935,000). — =45 2,935,000/ 7T ) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - F—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
g A

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years. The income of
the PRC subsidiaries neither arises in, nor is derived from,
Hong Kong.

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is based on
the estimated taxable income for each PRC subsidiary and
at its applicable tax rate. Under the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards.

During the current year, AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu)
Ltd. (“AKM Panyu”) and AKM Electronics Technology
(Suzhou) Ltd. ("AKM Suzhou”) were awarded the Foreign
Invested Advanced-Technology Enterprise Certificate. AKM
Panyu and AKM Suzhou are entitled to tax rate reduction
from 25% to 15% for three years commenced from 1
January 2013.

9. TAXATION Fi1E
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FAT
Current tax: REEHIA:
Hong Kong Profits Tax EAENEH 819 915
PRC Enterprise Income Tax REDESH 1,390 1,034
2,209 1,949
(Over) underprovision in prior years: LEFE (B8 T2 &E:
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENGH (83) 12
PRC Enterprise Income Tax REIETIEH 8 (83)
(75) (71)
2,134 1,878
Deferred tax: EAERIA
Current year (Note 25) KEZ (Krit25) (93) 268
2,041 2,146

FENGHRIDBRBEARRRMEFE (A
FHERD G MR R E16.5%t HE-ME P
BB AR Z WA FERBEERIIF
RERE-

hE RSB NRE RN ERRZE
PR Sk A 5 R SR B AR B A - 1R
i AREMEDEHERE ([REME
BOED) RAOEFBBOEE B - T EH
BATZHEE-TE\F-A-AEH
25% o

FR - ZREMN(FEB)ETEEERAA
(HBFBLEMNRLZEMNE 7R (&
M) BRAR ([ERINTEFR ) BB
MEERE -FBLREMNREGEMNZEFNB
T ZHF—A-BEZFZAHRIXR
% H25% NFAZE15% °
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TAXATION (Cont’d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e mARME

BiIR ()

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit FAzHIBEAEGEEEEMEENE
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or RZBRIA] /ﬁuiﬂé Elﬂﬁ T
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:
2013 2012
—E—-=F —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Profit before taxation B 54 A 4 A 33,508 34,683
Tax at the applicable income REAMSEHEERGTE
tax rate (Note) HIE(HaE) 5,026 8,671
Tax effect of share of result of [ElE—EEaERRIEEL
a joint venture M e - 825
Tax effect of income that are not T T B SR TR M s AN AT
taxable in determining taxable profit — ®RF 2 WA Z 5 2 (5) (140)
Tax effect of expenses that are FATE TE FE AR B 5 A B A Al
not deductible in determining MR zAZ2HBTE
taxable profit 196 282
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERAUMBEGREE
differences not recognised MB e 333 829
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHIBEBE S E 426 228
Overprovision in prior years LA E 2 B s (75) (71)
Effect of different tax rates of Bt A AP Bl B AR R
subsidiaries operating in BEZPRAME 28
other jurisdictions 231 (1,122)
Utilisation of tax losses previously BACZAIRER MG EIR
not recognised (3,325) (7,560)
Deferred taxation arising from R o B i F) 4 B FE A
withholding tax on FrEEE 2 RAET IR
undistributed profits (93) 268
Others H At (673) (64)
Taxation for the year REEFEHIE 2,041 2,146

Note: AKM Panyu is the Group’s major operating subsidiary. Therefore, the

Group's applicable income tax rate is 15% (2012: 25%).

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - F—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ \

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. ESERTETHAEBZHMERAR
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID R AL
INDIVIDUALS
(i) Details of directors’ and chief executive's (i) EERTETHAEZHMESHBRS
remuneration are as follows: mT:

Other emoluments

HitB &

Retirement  Performance

Salaries benefit related
and other scheme incentive Total
Fees benefits contributions payments  emoluments

FeR RAEA  ERBHN
ne Hin g A SRR 2k MewE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER

(Note ¢)

(Hfstc)
Xiong Zheng Feng RIEE - - - - -
Li Ying Hong Fwia - - - - -
Hung Chi Yuen Andrew HER 60 - - - 60
Meng Wei Wei R - - - - -
Chai Zhi Qiang ot - 530 28 341 899
Bi Ke Yun (Note a) 2nn (Hita) 108 - - - 108
Wang Heng Yi (Note b) TBE (Hib) 6 - - - 6
Liang Zhi Li REN 63 - - - 63
Total for 2013 I 237 530 28 34 1,136
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/ For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ—-F—=F+-A=+—HIFFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. ESERTETHAEBZHMERAR
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BEaHmmAL (&)

INDIVIDUALS (Cont’d)

(i) Details of directors’ and chief executive's (i) EERTETHAEZHMESHBERY
remuneration are as follows: (Cont’d) mE: (&)

Other emoluments

ik

Retirement Performance

Salaries benefit related
and other scheme incentive Total
Fees benefits  contributions payments emoluments
Hek RINGER HRFEH
e Hip g A AR Z#%E WewmE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT FTAET AT TEL
(Note ¢)
(Bistc)
Xiong Zheng Feng BRI - - - - -
Li Ying Hong FHia - - - - -
Hung Chi Yuen Andrew HER 60 - - - 60
Meng Wei Wei aREE - - - - -
Chai Zhi Qiang EE - 521 26 173 720
Liang Zhi Li REN 61 - - - 61
Wang Heng Yi (Note b) TR (Mitb) 61 - - - 61
Total for 2012 “ET-—F4 182 521 26 173 902
Notes: HaE -
(a)  Appointed on 4 February 2013. (@) MZZE—=F-_AMNAEZ{F-
(b)  Resigned on 4 February 2013. by R-ZE—=F_HAMNHET-
() The performance related incentive payments are determined () HERBEABHzREDNBAEBELEEER
with reference to the Group’s operating results and individual EAFRBMERE -
performances.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

10. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (Cont’d)

()

Details of directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration are as follows: (Cont’d)

Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang is also the Chief Executive of
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the
Chief Executive.

Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng and Ms. Li Ying Hong have
been employed by the intermediate holding company
and the payment of their emoluments were borne by
the intermediate holding company for both years, in
which the amounts are considered as insignificant.
For the year ended 31 December 2013, Mr. Xiong
Zheng Feng and Ms. Li Ying Hong waived their
nominal salary of HK$10 (2012: HK$10) and HK$10
(2012: HK$10), respectively. There are no other
directors who had waived their remuneration during
the years. Mr. Meng Wei Wei and Mr. Han Li Gang
have been employed by the ultimate holding company
and the payment of their emoluments were borne
by the ultimate holding company for both years, in
which the amounts are considered as insignificant.

RE-F—#+-A=+—ALFE

10. EERTETHAEZHME R AR
BRSEHMAL (&)

EERTETHRAEZHEEERT
mE: (&)

REREENMBARAITHRAS  H
M (W0 EXPERE) BRBATTIRE
BEMREHERBEKRZME -

REIFIE S 4 M ZMAT 2 + B P NI
BRARER RMEFE #52 M
SHPNERATAE BRSET
A-BE-_T—=F+-A=+—8
LHFEE REEEERFERALLR
BEHREDREBIOETL(ZE——F:
108 T) R1I0OBT(ZE—ZF:10
BLIz2EZEWNE - FRAMELME
EREEMS - ZHEESKEREIR
FEDERKRIERARER KM@
FE FEZHWESHRRERDRE
¥ RBEErA-
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10. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUALS (Cont’d)

(ii) Employees’ remuneration:

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, one (2012: one) was director of the
Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures in Note 10(i) above. The emoluments
of remaining four (2012: four) individuals were as

follows:

10. EERTETHAEZHME R AR
BRSEHMAL (&)

(i) EEMS:

REBREEINESHFMALTH
—H(ZE—ZF:—R)RARAE
FEFIE N L sE100) 2 B EE
R THE(ZE—ZF:0F) A
T2 FHMESI T

2013 2012

—E—-Z=F —T——4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Salaries and other benefits e RHAME R 2,241 1,614
Performance related incentive ERIINEMY 2 RS

payments 681 743
Retirement benefit scheme RIRERETEIHER

contributions costs 64 108

2,986 2,465

Remuneration of each of the employees for
both years falls within the band of less than

HK$1,000,000.

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the
Group to the directors and the Chief Executive or the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

loss of office.

SEEENRBEMFZIHME TN T
1,000,0008 T LA AT ©

FA-AREELEAE S RITHAR
FREHERFHALTIMEMHE -
DME RSB I A INA R £ B B 2 88
e REBE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - F—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

11. DIVIDEND 1. RE
2013 2012
—E—-= T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FHET
Dividend recognised as distribution FRNERRBDIRZBE
during the year:
Final dividend in cash paid for HE-_ZT——-F+=A
the year ended 31 December =T—HILFENLES
2012 — HK1 cent per share IR 2 REARR B —
(2012: nil for the year ended BRABW(ZZE—=4F:
31 December 2011) BHE-_Z——F+_A
=T—HIEFEART) 5,499 -
No dividend has been proposed since the end of the HEPREBETEEZZRENRE (ZE—Z
reporting period (2012: HK1 cent per share). FgRRUB) -

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

12. BRREBF|

attributable to owners of the Company is based on the BBATEBIETE

following data:

ARBAEBEANREERERNREERN T

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Earnings ZF|
Profit for the year attributable to RIESTEERERK
owners of the Company for D Pl [N/ E R SN
the purpose of basic and JE {5 7R 4F 5 g )
diluted earnings 30,301 32,449
Annual Report 2013 —ZE—=Ff3f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Cont’d)

FroA=+—AULEE

12. BREBEF (&)

Number of shares

g
2013 2012
—E—-=F —T——4F
Number of shares IR &
Weighted average number of ordinary F{Est EBREAREF] 2
shares for the purpose of basic LB nkE TR
earnings per share 546,075,616 540,000,000
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary RIEA R A B ER 2
share issuable under the Company'’s A TE @R Z
share option schemes BEEETE 1,797,676 -
Weighted average number of ordinary BR{EstEFIE EE T 2
shares for the purpose of mEFHEEREE
diluted earnings per share 547,873,292 540,000,000

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ—-F—=F+-A=+—HIFFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 9% -HWENKZE

THE GROUP &
Plant and Leasehold Office Motor  Construction
Buildings machinery improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
BT BERKE HENEEE BAERE EH ERIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR ThR TER TAT TER TR ThR
cosT R
At 1 January 2012 —Z-Zf-f-H 91,116 200,761 7,387 14,654 2,676 - 316,594
Additions RE B 23,957 2,284 1,341 442 4,506 32,530
Disposals HE - (3.374) - (1) (306) - (3,701)
Currency realignment B 714 1,615 66 121 15 17 2,548
At 31 December 2012 ZE-ZFf+ZA=1-8 91,830 222,959 9,737 16,095 2,827 4,523 347,971
Additions NE 3 76,127 10,464 1,777 - 22,395 110,766
Disposals ] - - - - (16) - (16)
Currency realignment SHRE 2,607 7,283 420 484 55 443 11,292
At 31 December 2013 —Z-=f+-A=t-H 94,440 306,369 20,621 18,356 2,866 27,361 470,013
DEPRECIATION AND FERAEE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2012 —Z--f-f—-H 4,506 88,935 3,921 8,193 1,610 - 107,165
Provided for the year EEER 2,151 17,854 2,124 2,263 335 - 24,727
Eliminated on disposals HEREE - (2,623) - (21) (267) - (2,911)
Currency realignment EEAE 44 709 39 72 8 - 872
At 31 December 2012 —2-f+-A=t-A 6,701 104,875 6,084 10,507 1,686 - 129,853
Provided for the year FEARE 2,190 21,078 4,123 2,217 362 - 29,970
Eliminated on disposals HEREE - - - - [€) - (3)
Currency realignment EHAE 221 3,114 231 328 34 - 3,928
At 31 December 2013 ZE-=Ff+ZA=1+-8 9,112 129,067 10,438 13,052 2,079 - 163,748
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2013 ZE-=Ff+ZA=1+-8 85,328 177,302 10,183 5,304 787 27,361 306,265
At 31 December 2012 ZE-ZF+ZA=1+-8 85,129 118,084 3,653 5,588 1,141 4,523 218,118
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e mARME

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)
THE GROUP (Cont’d)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis after taking into
account of the estimated residual values at the following
rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of
the lease of relevant land, or
40 - 50 years

Plant and machinery 5 - 15 years

Leasehold Over the remaining term of the
improvements lease or 4 years, whichever is
shorter
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 4 — 5 years

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has pledged
buildings and plant and machinery with carrying amount
of approximately HK$63,496,000 (2012: HK$63,349,000)
and HK$71,728,000 (2012: HK$54,786,000), respectively
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

The buildings are located on land under medium-term
lease in the PRC.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARAF

REM (&)

Eat¥E - BB REREEEB 2RGE R
BERERBERERATERE:

g5 AR b 2 A A HABR
HA0E50F (B
ERE)

TR 5 K i B8 5% 154

MEWMHEEE R THEHIASNIFE (AR
mEARE)

MRERME 54

B 455

R-ZE—=F+_A=+—H K&EE
AR E 5 5 A 463,496,000 70 (=
T — 4 :63,349,000/5 7T ) & 71,728,000
BT (T — — 4 :54,786,000) ZHEF LA
ERBERKSE UWERETFAEEZ —%
IRITELE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ—-F—=F+-A=+—HIFFE \

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d) 13. Y% BMERZ®E (&)

THE COMPANY NN
Office Motor
equipment vehicles Total
WMARRE HE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
COST R <
At 1 January 2012 and —E-—ZF—HA—HEK
31 December 2012 —ET——F+=-HA
=+—H 170 544 714
Additions NBE 39 - 39
As at 31 December 2013 —E—=F+-A=+—H 209 544 753
DEPRECIATION il
At 1 January 2012 —E——F—H—H 144 506 650
Provided for the year FEEHE 22 13 35
At 31 December 2012 —E-——F+-A=+—H 166 519 685
Provided for the year FEEE 8 13 21
At 31 December 2013 —E—=F4+=-A=+—H 174 532 706
CARRYING VALUES SR A
At 31 December 2013 —E—=F+-A=+—H 35 12 47
At 31 December 2012 —2-——-F+=-A=+—H 4 25 29
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e mARME

14. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

2013 2012
—E—-= T 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
The Group's prepaid lease payments  AEE ZFENHER B IE:
comprise:
Land in PRC: Az i
Medium-term lease FREIRE 59,347 59,024
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HERAE 2O
Current assets MENEE 1,353 1,316
Non-current assets ERBEE 57,994 57,708
59,347 59,024

The prepayment for land use rights is under medium term
lease and is amortised over 50 years on a straight-line
basis.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has pledged land
use rights in PRC with carrying amount of approximately
HK$20,671,000 (2012: HK$20,564,000) to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEERALF

THfEREZENFBERRETHHEL
REEDSOFHE -

R_Z—=ZF+_-_A=+—8" X£EE
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15.

= B 5 R AR M A

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE

AR LT —=Ff A=+ —HIFEZ

15. RIMB A B 2 FEW ()

FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES SN |
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
THE COMPANY ¥ NN
Capital contribution, at cost EARNE B AE 280,217 280,217
Impairment losses recognised 2R E E 8 (6,635) (11,445)
273,582 268,772
The Company also has amounts due from subsidiaries AN B INA FEU B A A1 5 I8 14,972,000
of HK$14,972,000 (2012: HK$15,827,000) included B (ZFE—=%:15,827,000% 7T)

in current assets and amounts due to subsidiaries of
HK$104,401,000 (2012: HK$110,917,000) included in
current liabilities. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of interests in subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013
amount to HK$6,635,000 (2012: HK$11,445,000). No
impairment loss has been recognised in respect of amounts
due from subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

Amounts due to subsidiaries are trade payables of
HK$104,401,000 (2012: HK$110,917,000) and all aged
within 90 days.

At the end of the reporting period, impairment losses
recognised in respect of interests in subsidiaries was based
on their value in use calculation and measured as the
difference between the carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
expected rate of return of the interests in subsidiaries. The
discount rate used in estimating the present value of the
future cash flows from the interests in subsidiaries was
7.5% (2012: 7.5%).

AR EE MENKHE QXK
15104,401,0008 L (=ZF — = F:
110,917,000 7T ) At ARBI B &N =
T—=F+ZA=+—H RWBRAZ
T % 2 B 5RO B & 18 /6,635,000 7T
—Z— —4F 11,445,000 L) A =&

—=FRZE—ZF+ZA=+—HAR
A R B R UM B A B 5k I8 T SRR B B
o

JE U B BB X &)
RERIFER

RIBSEER T ERA

FAENHBRAAFREAERENE S
FXIE104,401,0008 L (= &F— —F
110,917,000/ 7T ) * BR& A90H -

RBEMR ARMERAR 2 SRR Z
ﬁfﬁ)ﬁﬂé)}ﬁf?‘ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ@* B R

NRERZREERZBHL R
EEZ1EE‘I’ﬂixfﬁﬁuluiiﬁfﬁz%gﬁﬁ‘l’i°
REGAREMNBARER ZARES
MERBEINRERTS% (ZT—=F:
7.5%)
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/ For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ-F—=F+-A=+—HIFFE

15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 15. RITB AR 2w, U (Ef)

FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) BB A B FRIE (&)
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December R_E—=FN _FT——F+_A=+—
2013 and 2012 are as follows: H ARAIMBARIZFBUT
Place of Form of Attributable equity
establishment  business interest held
Name of subsidiary and operation  structure Paid-up capital by the Company Principal activities
HEARER BIRSE Y CEARES HMREX HAARREZEERAES FEEY
direct indirect
HiE GE:3
AKM Panyu The PRC Wholly US$21,700,000 100% - Manufacture and sale of FPC
EBLEN R owned-foreign (2012: US$21,700,0000  (2012: 100%) HERBEFHERR
enterprise 21,700,000%7 (ZF—=F:
NEBELE (Z2—=%: 100% )
21,700,000% 1)
New Career Guangzhou The PRC Wholly US$2,229,000 100% - Manufacture and sale of
Electronics Company Limited F owned-foreign (2012: US$2,229,000)  (2012: 100%) flexible packaging
BNEZBEETHERAR enterprise 2,229,000%7T (ZF—=%F: substrates
IEBERE (Z%—=F: 100%) RERHEFUHERER
2,229,000%7T)
AKM (Suzhou) The PRC Wholly US$12,642,460 100% - Manufacture and sale of FPC
EYES- R owned-foreign (2012: US$12,642,460)  (2012: 100%) HERBEFHERR
enterprise 12,642,460% L (ZT—=F:
NEBELE (Z2—=%: 100% )
12,642,460%0)
Giant Rise Technology Limited Hong Kong Limited company HK$1,000,000 75% - Trading of raw materials and
REANBRBRAR Bk BRAF (2012: HK$1,000,000)  (2012: 75%) FPC, sourcing and sale of
1,000,000 (ZZE—Z%: electronic components
(Z2—=f: 75% ) BERMBRFUERER -
1,000,000% 7T ) RERHEEFLAN
Shenzhen Giant Rise Electronics The PRC Wholly RMB1,800,000 - 100% Trading of raw materials and
Company Limited F owned-foreign (2012: RMB1,800,000) (2012: 100%)  FPC, sourcing and sale of
FINEAZNEEFERARA enterprise AE#1,800,0007T (ZZ—=%F:  electronic components
IEBERE (Z%—=F: 100% ) BERMBRFUERER -
AR #1,800,0007C) RERHEEFLAN
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at BB A B A M B E R BB T E 7
the end of both years. B o
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16.

17.

INVENTORIES 16. FE
THE GROUP
KEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —EF——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Raw materials [ 44 %+ 31,079 34,660
Work in progress B 22,109 17,926
Finished goods 2R 21,640 16,653
74,828 69,239
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. ES R HAiE W FIE

Trade and other receivables include the following balances
of trade and bills receivables:

B 5 hEMEYWFIAEBTRE TIIE S RIER
BN R IR AR

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—-= —E——-F =ZB-= —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET FERT FiET
Trade and bills receivables B 5 RWFIERERER 164,574 160,759 49,018 45,931
Less: Allowance for doubtful il : R BER &

debts (6,179) (7,050) (508) (508)
158,395 153,709 48,510 45,423
Other tax recoverable H A fE UL AR A 632 1,077 = -
Other receivables (Note) Hofth fE W B (f772) 8,567 9,614 943 4,511
167,594 164,400 49,453 49,934
Note: The amount mainly represents the advances to suppliers. In the Miat: ZREXTEERTHER BT -EERAE-

opinion of the directors, the amount is expected to be utilised within
next 12 months.

ZHERARRK+ —EAREHA -
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

The Group and the Company allow a credit period
normally ranging from 30 to 90 days to its trade
customers. At the discretion of the directors, after
assessing credit quality of particular customers, several
major customers were allowed to settle their balances
beyond the credit terms up to 120 days.

Before accepting any new customer, the management
delegates a team responsible to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are
reviewed twice a year. Approximately 77% (2012: 77%)
and 84% (2012: 71%) of the Group’s and the Company's
trade receivables, respectively that are neither past due nor
impaired have the best credit scoring attributable under
the internal credit scoring used by the Group and the
Company.

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills
receivables presented based on the invoice dates (other
than bills receivables which are presented based on the
issuance date of relevant bills) at the end of the reporting
period, which approximated the respective revenue
recognition dates:

17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e mARME

BEZREMEBWRIE (&)

REERARBGTESEPZEEY—
fRAB30BER T F-KEEH B AR
EFEFEREPZEEERR ETXEE
EPAEFEMARENERBE &5
A[3E1208 °

M ERP 2 BEEEEZR/AE
BEHMEEREP 2 EEEEREERPZ
BFEELR - B TEPZEELRRTS T
FEZMR - RNEERKRRAD AT %
TEZFT77% ) R84% (ZFE— =
F:71% ) BiE@ EsORE 2 B 5 EYWRIE
BAREERARNTERAZ A BT &
flEzEmERND -

AT RR\ERRES QR ARER B H
HTEEZ A2 2B 5 KA & E
WEREZREDN (ERKERZARE
EZHAEBH25IRIN)

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
r5EE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=%f T ZEB-=Ff CZT—-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT TERT TAET
Within 30 days 30H A 61,050 66,458 12,995 19,423
31 - 60 days 31260H 48,513 31,572 23,558 8,536
61 - 90 days 61£290H 25,522 26,867 11,375 9,018
91 - 120 days 91%120H 6,633 13,568 449 5,723
121 days - 1 year 1218214 16,596 14,732 52 2,723
Over 1 year 1A £ 81 512 81 -
158,395 153,709 48,510 45,423
AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEERALF
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17.

B 7% R R M R

o

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$29,646,000 (2012: HK$31,278,000) which are past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss in view of the satisfactory
subsequent settlement. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances. The average age of these
receivables is 160 days (2012: 125 days).

Included in the Company's trade receivable balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$7,224,000
(2012: HK$12,980,000) which are past due at the
reporting date for which the Company has not provided
for impairment loss in view of the satisfactory subsequent
settlement. The Company does not hold any collateral over
these balances. The average age of these receivables is 61
days (2012: 122 days).

Ageing of trade receivables presented based on the
invoice date which are past due but not impaired

EE— = —HIEE

17.

BEZRHEMEBEWNRIE(£)
AEEESEURRELEHBELRE
Ml fE 429,646,000 L (Z T — — &
31,278,000/ 7T ) 2 FEURBR 3K - IAsR4E B HA
BB AR ZERRREREEE LR
EASETEELRESEREBE A
B ERZSERFEEMEF - Z5E
WkiE 2 FH Rk 21608 (ZT— — 4
1258) °

5=
= —
=

KRRl B RRBAREBEESBBRAER
& A7,224,0008 L (ZF —ZF:
12,980,000 7T ) < FEMAR X - IR E B A
BB AR ZENARREERISEBR®
B AR RWEELRERBEREE AQF
WEBZ S ERR AR - ZF R
REZFHE®EACIEH (T ——F 122
H) o

RRZAHM2ICBHERREZESE
WK H 2 BR R

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
biN-3: ] NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—-= —E2—_F =ZB-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET THERT FET
0 - 30 days 30HA 189 186 184 186
31 - 60 days 31260H 7,790 2,420 5,195 495
61 - 90 days 61£290H 3,404 5,175 1,263 3,853
91 - 120 days 91£120H 2,334 8,870 449 5,723
121 days — 1 year 1218B&21%F 15,848 14,115 52 2,723
Over 1 year 1A £ 81 512 81 -
29,646 31,278 7,224 12,980
Annual Report 2013 —ZE—=Ff3f
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 17. ES R HMEKRRE (&)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REREZEH
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE ¥
2013 2012 2013 2012
—g-=F —-F--F Zg8-=F —-ZEF—=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FER FET
Balance at beginning of FUEH
the year 7,050 6,965 508 508
(Reversal of) impairment losses #t & U458 (B @) R 2
recognised on receivables HEEE (951) 1,138 = -
Amount written off as RN E g
uncollectible (74) (1,108) = -
Currency realignment BEHRAE 154 55 - -
Balance at end of the year FRER 6,179 7,050 508 508

Included in the Group’s and the Company’s allowance for

doubtful debts are individually impaired trade receivables
with an aggregate balance of HK$6,179,000 and
HK$508,000 (2012: HK$7,050,000 and HK$508,000),
respectively by reference to subsequent settlement and

creditability of individual customers.

AEBRARBIZRERED B BEL
#4858 5 216,179,000/% 7T }2508,00078 7T
—ZT— 4 :7,050,00058 7T %2 508,0005
7o) ZER 2R EE S EWRIE - H2EE
AMEPEBEEEREERRNETE -

The Group’s and the Company’s trade and other AR E BRI ae G AN B TIAE
receivables that are denominated in currencies other than CAREBERARNFE S K EMERFIEH
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set FanR -
out below:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
FEE NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f T4 ZB-=f —ZT—=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET THERT FET
United States Dollar (“US$") %7t ([ZE7L]) 51,821 52,342 48,510 45,755
Euro (“EUR") BT (TET]) - 1,601 - 1,601
Korea Won ("KRW") EEE ([ZHE]) 237 170 237 170

122
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19.
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|

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure short-term banking facilities granted to the Group
and the Company and are therefore classified as current
assets.

The pledged bank deposits of the Group and the Company
carried at interest rate of 0.02% per annum (2012: 0.02%
per annum). The pledged bank deposits will be released
upon settlement of the relevant bank borrowings. The
pledged bank deposits are denominated in HK$.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances comprise short-term bank deposits with
original maturity less than three months which carry
interest at rates ranging from 0.01% to 1.265% (2012:
0.01% to 2.6%) per annum.

Included in the Group’s bank balances are short-term
deposits of HK$20,475,000 (2012: HK$41,746,000) kept
in banks located in the PRC.

In addition, included in the bank balances and cash are the
following amounts denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the relevant group entities are
set out below:

AR LT —=Ff A=+ —HIFEZ

18.

19. §

2R FRIT IR

ZRBREBRTRTZEH BIEEREK
FTAKEERARRZEHRITEE Bt
SIERBEE -

KREERARG 2z B EFIRITERE
0.02% (ZE—ZF : FHFE0.02% ) 2 5F
MEFT B - DEMBITHEREREBIRIT
BEBEREBRER -CRFRITIFRIIASE
TCEHE ©

THEBRRE

ER171 *ﬁ?@%uﬁ%&om%;%1.265%z¢
FME(ZZE—Z-F:001%%2.6% )T 2
B R 7| EI DR =ZEA 2 EERITER -

AEBETERPETREFRZETZ
% HR1F 3%20,475,0008 L (T — — 4
41,746,000/ 7T ) °

SN RITEBRRREBE TIABES
EMERZNEEY A$7|\Z = B SIME 2 3
I8 :

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE ¥ NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—-= —E——-F =ZB-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAER FAT FHET FAT
us$ Xt 21,593 15,030 15,786 6,030
EUR BT - 3 - 3
WON FEEE 31 = 31 -
Annual Report 2013 —ZE—=Ff3f
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20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. EZ R EMENFE
Trade and other payables include the following balances: B REMBENFBERE T
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
AEM KA
2013 2012 2013 2012

—E-=F —ZT--—_F ZEBE-Z=ZFE =—ZT-—=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAER FAT THERT FAT

Trade and bills payables B 5 REMENEE 147,068 131,088 59 10
Payables for acquisition WENE BEREHEZ
of property, plant and JE R IE
equipment 909 1,927 - -
Accrued staff costs FERFE IR 10,676 11,696 239 265
Construction payables JEfT TR RIE 2,476 4,429 = -
Other taxation payables JE A5 EL it 58 18 274 263 5 -
Other payables and H it e A R EETE A
accruals 6,500 9,236 2,309 2,278
167,903 158,639 2,612 2,553
The following is an aged analysis by invoice date/bills ITARBREHARIREZAEH, ZEHEA
issued date of trade and bills payables at the end of the BEHZY B REMNZBEBRENEZEZE
reporting period: e AT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE KA T
2013 2012 2013 2012

—E-=§ T CZEBE-=Z§f CZT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TET TERT FET

Within 30 days 308 R 58,853 33,421 59 10
31 - 60 days 312608 45,254 25,105 - -
61 - 90 days 612908 31,336 25,882 - -
91 - 120 days 91%120H 9,952 25,133 - -
121 days - 1 year 1218Z1F 1,598 16,630 - -
Over 1 year 1494 F 75 4,917 - -
147,068 131,088 59 10

124 AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - F—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ \

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d) 20 Hih (T RIE (&)
The Group's and the Company's trade and other payables NHEESEEERENEEE U EETE
that are denominated in currencies other than functional ZAEEEARQNTE S N EMENFKIAE
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below: Hanr -
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE ¥ NN
2013 2012 2013 2012

“B-=f —E-——-F CZE-=Z§ —T——-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FHEL FERT FET
uss$ ETT 47,209 48,609 1,717 1,772
21. DEFERRED INCOME 21 IBEEWA
THE GROUP
rEE
2013 2012
—E—-= —EF——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Government grants received BTINEIBEMKER 2
in respect of: BT B -
Development of new products FREMER (K1)
(Note 1) - 3,582
Construction of factory RIRE T EERE
on existing lands (Note 2) (B1at2) 32,073 32,019
32,073 35,601
Less: Amounts to be recognised W RFERIB I AR
in profit or loss IE
in the following year (855) (4,413)
Amount shown under non-current TIVEFERBIBE L2
liabilities 31,218 31,188

Annual Report 2013 —Z—=FF{ 125
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - ZE—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

21. DEFERRED INCOME (Cont'd)

Notes:

(1) The amounts represent government subsidies received in advance
in relation to research and development expenses on certain new
products. The amounts will be recognised in the same period as
the related research and development expenses are incurred. It
had resulted in a credit to profit or loss of HK$5,524,000 (2012:
HK$632,000).

(2)  The amount of RMB26,750,000 was received in respect of a
development support fund for the construction of factory on
the lands owned by the Group located at Suzhou pursuant to
“Implementation Measures for Development Support Policies for
Advanced Manufacturing Industries in Suzhou Guoxin District”.
The amount would be released over the estimated useful lives of
the constructed factory upon the commencement of operation of
the new factory. As the construction of the factory was completed
and was in use since 2012, HK$843,000 (2012: HK$828,000) was
released to profit or loss. Details in relation to the grant of the fund
had been disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 25
September 2008.

22. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN INTERMEDIATE 22.

HOLDING COMPANY/AMOUNT DUE TO
ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY/AMOUNT
DUE TO A FELLOW SUBSIDIARY/LOANS
FROM AN INTERMEDIATE HOLDING
COMPANY

THE GROUP
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary and amount due to

ultimate holding company are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF

EIEWA (&)
wis

() ZRBARERE THEMZMEBEBMEL
B2 R R BEREEZRABRRAEH
HEER - AEHIBRERS5,524,00087x (=ZF
— — 4 632,000/ 7C) °

(2) HABARE26,750,0007T 7 FIE A4 EERE
[ERMN S E A R e s B BRI R
ZEHIOE] REREMEE i FEITRER
BB ERKFE S - Z B HIRER TR
ZIEETAIE R RN E TR A A E R B E
WA - HRZIMERTIIW R T — - FIZA
{# A #843,0007% 7T (= Z — — 4F : 828,000/8
TBABZ AHRZERRBESIETHE
ERARR ZZEZENFAA-FTRBZAMHH
W

FEU RN RIR A BIFE S EN RR
)N E N E/},@ﬁﬂ?ﬁfﬂ?’&ﬂ
/'43J|E“: BRAB2ER

AEME
FEAS IR X Y 8~ B k0B M B S AR R B
AIREREER TR RAREREE
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - ZF—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

22. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN INTERMEDIATE 22. BN ERDBRIE,EIHRE
HOLDING COMPANY/AMOUNT DUE TO ) /NI E E/EEHH?MTF NE]
ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY/AMOUNT SHRNERARAZER (E)

DUE TO A FELLOW SUBSIDIARY/LOANS

FROM AN INTERMEDIATE HOLDING

COMPANY (Cont’d)

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY EEEREAAT

Amount due from an intermediate holding company is BRANZERARNEAEER 2ERK

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. REREE-

Unsecured loans from an intermediate holding company FNERAFZERFERBE:

comprise:

2013 2012
—E—-=F —EF—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Loan of US$2 million (Note a) 2,000,000% 7t 2 &5k
(Kiita) 15,510 15,504
Loan of US$3 million (Note b) 3,000,000% 7T 2 E K
(K15Eb) 23,265 23,256
Loan to HK$6 million (Note c) 6,000,0007% 7T.2 B
(Ktitce) - 6,000
38,775 44,760

Notes: Biat -

(a)  Asat 31 December 2012, the loan was unsecured, bearing interest at (@ RZE—=ZF+-—A=+—H EXAEEAR-
3.6% per annum and repayable in full in July 2014. During the year RFEB36%THTERER-_T—NFLAEHE
ended 31 December 2013, a supplemental agreement was signed B-RNEBEE-_T—=F+-A=1+—RH1LEFE"
to change the terms of the loan to extend the maturity date to July &l *@%ﬁ?ﬂ’/’ﬁ% SERZERBIEAT
2015 with other terms and conditions remained unchanged. & —RFEA - W E MR R GEEREE T

(b)  As at 31 December 2012, the loan was unsecured, bearing interest (b)
at 3.6% per annum and repayable in full in July 2014. During the
year ended 31 December 2013, a supplemental agreement was
signed to extend the maturity date to July 2015 with other terms and
conditions remained unchanged.

(c)  As at 31 December 2012, the loan was unsecured, bearing interest at (0)
3.6% per annum and repayable in July 2013. The amount was fully
settled during the current year.

i

R=B——F+-A=+—H HRAEEM
HiF £3.6%3 B RAR T —ME+ B AR
B-RBE-F-ZF+-ASt+—HLEFE
FAT—ORERE BAPALEE-_S—5
FrA . HRMERRIEERETE

RZBE-——F+-A=+—HB ZERAEE

B REL36%tERANR_ZFT—=ZF+AHE
BoMAFE  ZRAC KBRS -

Annual Report 2013 —ZE—=Ff3f
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - ZE—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

23. BANK BORROWINGS 23. RITEE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
r5E NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= T Z8-= —g-—F
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TET TET TET FHET
Bank loans (Note) RITER (H2T) 122,140 72,863 20,770 298
Trust receipts loans (Note) 1.5 BB R (A1) 4,178 - 4,178 -
126,318 72,863 24,948 298
Secured HE 126,318 72,565 24,948 298
Unsecured i - 298 - -
126,318 72,863 24,948 298
Carrying amount repayable  FEEEIREE

Within one year —FR 111,518 72,863 10,148 298

More than one year, but not %R — & BB i@ M F
exceeding two years 4,008 - 4,008 -

More than two years, but not ZRMFEETBBAF
exceeding five years 10,793 - 10,793 -
126,319 72,863 24,949 298

Note: Bank loans are secured by charges over land use rights, buildings,
trade receivables, machinery and bank deposits (2012: land use
rights, buildings, trade receivables, machinery and bank deposits) of
the Group while the trust receipts loans are secured by charges over
the Group's bank deposits (Note 35).

At 31 December 2013, included in the bank loans of the Group
are loans of total HK$122,140,000 (2012: HK$72,863,000) which
bear interest at fixed rates. The remaining bank loans and the trust
receipts loans carry interest at prevailing market rates.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARAQF

it BITERAREE Y LI ERE T BB

WHOR HBERRTER(ZF——F LifE
BT EHREHURE R RRITEROE
ER MEFBBEFTAREBEARRE ZRTT
T RIEER (AF5235) »

RZZE—=F+=-A=+—8" ZKEIEH\%EG
BRZEFEEAR122,140,0008 0 (=2 — =
172,863,000/ 7t Jy 1% [E £ F F ;Hrg ﬂﬁ%
BOERRELRBEERIKETMSF Rt
B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - F—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

23.

24.

BANK BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 23.
The ranges of effective interest rates (which also equal

to contracted interest rates) on the Group's and the
Company’s borrowings are as follows:

RITHE (&)

AEERAATGE L BEFE (FES
RETHFE) BEMT

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE b N/N|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=f T =ZB-=f <—T—_-F
Effective interest rates: EIRF %
Fixed-rate borrowings BEfEEE 2.43% to 2.61% to 3.25% 2.75% to
5.77% 6.73% 5%
Variable-rate borrowings FEREEE 3.23% 3.25% 3.23% 3.25%
The Group's and the Company’s borrowings that are AR B ER I BRI 2 B IE
denominated in currencies other than functional currencies ZAREBRARBZEEERINWOT

of the relevant group entities are set out below:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
KEE AAH
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —FE-—-F ZE-=F —ET——-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F#T FHET FHET
us$ ES 103,844 59,644 2,474 -
EUR BT 4,178 - 4,178 -
LOAN FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 24. AR ERATZER

The amount represented an interest-free and unsecured
loan obtained by AKM Panyu (a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group) from CNIC for the development of a project.
The principal of loan was RMB4,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$4,975,000), and it was repayable on five equal
instalments of RMB800,000 (equivalent to HK$991,000)
per annum. The outstanding balance as at 31 December
2013 was RMB800,000 (equivalent to HK$1,023,000),
which is due within one year.

BRLEN (RAEBEZ2EMNB AR ES
R TE— %ﬁagﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁﬁ)k A%

B—EBE  -EHAEAARE4000,000
T (HE JJM 975,000 L) ' ZEX D H

HEZ MBHEENEFHYASFEAR
#800,0007T (#855#2991,000/87T) - A=
T—=F+_fA=+—HZHKEEHE
A AR ¥800,0007T (855 741,023,0007
TL) R —FANEIHE -

Annual Report 2013 —ZE—=Ff3f
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The following deferred tax liability mainly arises from
withholding tax on the undistributed profits of the PRC
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
movement thereon during current and prior year:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MY R

/ For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - ZE—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

25. DEFERRED TAXATION 5. IEIERLIE

LTRITEARTEHBERARRBEEZE-F
— =+ A=+ HLEFEZARNEE
MAZEHIRMEE 2 EXERBEGE &
ERAFERBEFEZRBEES:

HK$'000

FHT

At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—H—H 513

Charged to profit or loss (note 9) BREERME (#:79) 268

Currency realignment B 5

At 31 December 2012 R-E-——F+-_A=+—H 786

Credited to profit or loss (note 9) FFABEER (#779) (93)

Currency realignment BHEAR 21
At 31 December 2013

During the current year, the Group has recognised
a deferred tax credit of HK$93,000 (2012: deferred
tax charge of HK$268,000) which is arisen from the
undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
the deductible temporary differences in respect of
accumulated allowance for doubtful debts, accumulated
allowance for obsolete inventories, impairment loss in
respect of property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$4,635,000 (2012: HK$5,595,000), HK$11,946,000
(2012: HK$8,765,000), HK$3,873,000 (2012:
HK$3,873,000), respectively. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised in the foreseeable
future.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF

RZE—=F+=-RA=+—H 714

RAFE - AEE B2 #3293,00087T (ZF
— % :268,0008 L ZIREMIAZ ) 2
EERMER R ZXBDHTBEMBARZ
R 5 B F) O B B o

RBERR AEEHAFHERER . 25
BiE RETEZRABRE ME -BE
R & 2 BB B B AR R 2 AT A0 ER R =
B Rl#4,635,0008 L (ZE —ZF:
5,595,000/ 7T) ~ 11,946,000 7L (=&
— % :8,765,000/% 7T ) %3,873,000/% T

—Z— 4 :3,873,00087T) c R A]
BETE AT 7B R PR &) AR 0] H00R B I A= 5E
LN SR RZ S ] IR R A E R R IR TR
BEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - F—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

25. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$7,308,000 (2012: HK$26,635,000)

25 JRFERLIR (42)

RREBR NREE B A K8 R R ER
FomF 2 K& AR IEE 7,308,000 T

available for offset against future taxable profits. No — & — — % :26,6350008 L) cHR &
deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the 2R FE ER B g ) SRR T B TR - [ b 3 A
unpredictability of future taxable profit streams. Included RBECEMEEE - R _ZE—HFINHZ
in unrecognised tax losses are losses that will expire by BT AKRBEREIARE
2014.
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. R A
Number of Share
shares capital
B # B [N
HK$'000
FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREE B L ZEBR
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2012, 31 December RZE——-F—H—H"
2012 and 31 December 2013 —E-_f+ZA=+—H
MNZT—=%F
+—-A=+—H 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRERE:
At 1 January 2012, 31 December RZE——F—HA—BkK
2012 —E-——F#+=-A=+—H 540,000,000 54,000
Exercise of share options (note) TR REARRE (I 3t) 9,900,000 990
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=ZH=+—H 549,900,000 54,990

Note.: During the year, 9,900,000 shares of HK$0.1 each were issued at
HK$0.36 per share upon exercise of the Scheme (as defined under
note 27) of the Company by share option holders.

Annual Report 2013

Biit: FR - REBREBBEATERRRZE (F
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27. SHARE OPTIONS 27.

Pursuant to written resolutions of the then shareholders
of the Company on 6 August 2004, the Company
adopted both a Pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO
Scheme”) and a share option scheme (the “Scheme”).

(a) Pre-IPO Scheme

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Scheme is to, amongst
others, give the participants an opportunity to have
a personal stake in the Company and help motivate
the participants to optimise their performance
and efficiency and retain the participants whose
contributions are important to the long-term growth
and profitability of the Group.

The HK$0.40 exercise price per share of the above
share options granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme is
the same as the initial public offering price of the
Company’s shares. No share options under the Pre-
IPO Scheme were exercised since the date of grant.

No further share options have been offered or
granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme upon the
commencement of listing of the Company’s shares.

These grants under the Pre-IPO Scheme are
exercisable, starting from the first anniversary of the
Listing Date at stepped annual increments of 25% of
the total options granted, for a period of not later
than 10 years from the date of grant on the condition
that the participants are still under employment of the
Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which share
options are issuable under the Pre-IPO Scheme shall
not in aggregate exceed 5% of the number of issued
shares.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - ZF—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

27. SHARE OPTIONS (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Pre-IPO Scheme (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2013, the total number of
shares in respect of which share options are issuable
under this scheme is 8,400,000 (2012: 8,400,000)
representing approximately 1.53% (2012: 1.56%) of
the issued share capital of the Company.

Details of the movements in the number of share
options during the year under the Pre-IPO Scheme are

BIRERTE (&)

(a)

BRBRAE (&)

RZE—=F+ZA=+—H 1RE
FrEIRE cEREN TEIT RN
42 80 58,400,0000 (=& — — 4 :
8,400,000/% ) " 1A A A B TR A
#49153% (ZE—_4F:1.56% ) °

FARREERXBRATG R E 2 BR
BB ZE#LFHBET:

as follows:
Exercise  Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
Type of price at during at during at
participants Date of grant Exercisable period per share 1.1.2012 the year 1.1.2013 the year  31.12.2013
R-Z-=F R-E-=F R=%-Z%
-A-H -A-H +ZA=Zt+-8
SEEER R EH TEAH BRITEE HRITE FREH HARITE FREN e
HK$
BT
Directors 6 August 2004 18 August 2005 to 0.40 5,400,000 - 5,400,000 - 5,400,000
6 August 2014
EF —ZTMEF “ZTRFNATNR
NARE E_T-NF
NARE
Employees 6 August 2004 18 August 2005 to 0.40 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
6 August 2014
(3 g k2 —ZZRENATNH
NARE E_T-NF
NARE
8,400,000 - 8,400,000 - 8,400,000
Scheme (b) 3t &

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives
or rewards to Participants (as defined below)
thereunder for their contribution to the Group and/
or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-
calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group and any entity in which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries holds any equity
interest (the “Invested Entity”).

AEIEEEAKERENRZEE (TR
RTOBAKEMERRAEEFR
HEBKEF R REAEE TR
BRBREESEE URAAREER
ARmgEEMHBARRETESR
EREEZEFNER(DEEER])
Bl BBEZANER-
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27. BIRHERTE (&)
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27. SHARE OPTIONS (Cont’d)

(b) Scheme (Cont’d)

The directors may, at their discretion, invite any
participant (the “Participant”) being any executive
director, non-executive director or employee (whether
full time or part time), shareholder, supplier, customer,
consultant, adviser, other service provider, any joint
venture partner, business or strategic alliance partner,
in each case, of the Company, any subsidiary of the
Company or any Invested Entity or any discretionary
trust whose discretionary objects may be any
executive director, non-executive director or employee
(whether full time or part time), shareholder, supplier,
customer, consultant, adviser, other service provider,
any joint venture partner, business or strategic
alliance partner, in each case, of the Company, any
subsidiary of the Company or any Invested Entity
to take up options to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

The Scheme commenced on 18 August 2004,
being the date on which the Scheme becomes
unconditional, and continues in force until the tenth
anniversary of such date.

The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time (the “Scheme Limit").

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF
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27. SHARE OPTIONS (Cont’d)

(b) Scheme (Cont’d)

In addition to the Scheme Limit, and subject to the
following, the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options granted under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the Company’s shares in issue as at the Listing
Date (excluding any options which have lapsed) (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit").
shares issuable under the Scheme Mandate Limit will

The initial number of

be 54,000,000 shares, representing approximately
10% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Unless approved by shareholders, the total number of
securities issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each Participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the Company’s shares
in issue. Where any further grant of options to a
Participant would result in the Company’s shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such
further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of
the relevant class of securities in issue, such further
grant must be separately approved by the Company’s
shareholders in general meeting with such Participant
and his associates abstaining from voting.

27. BBIRHERTE (&)

(b) &H&I(#&)

BREFEIFREESN - FE TORRT - IRIRET
B I AR A ] H A B AR M A I %
ZEEERE (TEETWNERRZ
B ETER A RERIT I RO R
H EHTEEAN ETABRE BT
f&1210% ([FHEIEERTE]) - BIE
SRR ERBEI LSO TEIT RN E
B # /54,000,000 B 17+ 15 & A &)
ZEEITRALI0% -

B FERE B R AL - RMEMR + —{E A
MR RAEsE2EERNZBERE
(BRETERARTEZERE)
BOTEREBETRETETZES
BB TNSBREARFDHTRNZ
1% o A — B2 EEE TR BEMR
BRESEIZAALIREE (LB
B)ZE-—TEREOAMET @A
BARATEEDERMBER AR
PoE (BIEEITE  EERERITEZ
BRE) MBRTRAERETZAR
AknhARBREAERCD BETRIES
1% ZE—FREAZARRBBE
ERRERAG ER1THE Mi2EE
RHEBEATARERSR-
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27. SHARE OPTIONS (Cont’d)

(b) Scheme (Cont’d)

The exercise price must be at least the highest of:
(a) the nominal value of the Company's share on the
date of grant; (b) the closing price of the Company’s
share as stated in the daily quotations sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; and (c) the average closing
price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

A nominal consideration of HK$10 is payable by the
grantee upon acceptance of an option.

Share options are vested immediately on the date of
grant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme at any time during a period
to be determined and notified by the Directors of
the Company to each grantee of the option which
period may commence on a day after the date upon
which the option is granted but shall and in any
event be not later than ten years from the date of
grant. Unless otherwise determined by the Directors
of the Company at their sole discretion, there is no
requirement of a minimum period for which a share
option must be held.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there
were 9,900,000 (2012: nil) share options exercised
and 800,000 (2012: 1,600,000) share options lapsed
during the current year. As at 31 December 2013,
the total number of shares in respect of which share
options are issuable under this scheme is 6,100,000
(2012: 16,800,000) representing approximately
1.11% (2012: 3.11%) of the issued share capital of
the Company.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF
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27. BIRHERTE (&)

(b) &H&I(#&)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ—F—=F+-A=+—HIFFE

27. SHARE OPTIONS (Cont’d)

(b) Scheme (Cont’d)

Details of the movements in the number of share

options during the year under the Scheme are as

27. BBIRHERTE (&)

(b) &H&I(#&)

FARIEE BIIR 2 B AER R 2
fLEfEmT

follows:
Exercise Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
Type of Exercisable price at during at during during at
participants Date of grant period per share 1.1.2012 the year 1.1.2013 the year the year  31.12.2013
R-B-=F
R=2-=f R-Z2-=% +=A
—-A-H —-A—-8B =t+-H
SREEH R AH TR BRITEE HRATE FREX HRATE FRTE FREN HRATE
HKS$
BT
Directors 9 July 2007 10 July 2007 to 0.36 9,200,000 (1,600,000) 7,600,000 (6,800,000) (800,000) -
9 July 2017
EEd ZETLHE ZETH
+ANE tAt+HZE
“E—iF
tANR
Employees 9 July 2007 10 July 2007 to 0.36 9,200,000 - 9,200,000  (3,100,000) - 6,100,000
and others 9 July 2017
EEREM g3 o2 ke 28 o3
+tANE tAt+REZE
“EiF
+tANE
18,400,000  (1,600,000) 16,800,000  (9,900,000) (800,000) 6,100,000

The Group recognised total expenses of nil (2012:

nil) related to equity-settled share-based payment

transactions during the year.

AEE - ANEE R R E ARG
XX BABRALIRE(ZZ
—ZF:F)e
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28. RESERVES 28. f#f@
Share
Share options Retained
premium reserve profits Total
BREE BEBREGE RE = F =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET TET FHET
THE COMPANY PN
At 1 January 2012 WZE—=—%—H—H 53,868 2,475 68,001 124,344
Profit for the year and KEEZRFRAFE
total comprehensive 2HEEALE
income for the year - - 6,231 6,231
Lapse of share options BB RS LK - (157) 157 -
At 31 December 2012 RZE—ZF
+ZA=1+—-H 53,868 2,318 74,389 130,575
Profit for the year and REFRMNRAFE
total comprehensive ZHIRA B
income for the year - - 4,106 4,106
Exercise and lapse of share EREREITFERAX
options 3,544 (1,048) 78 2,574
Dividend paid (note 71) BRRE (M) - - (5,499) (5,499)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+=-BA=+—H 57,412 1,270 73,074 131,756

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - F—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

29. &R T A

ERMIAEESR
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
AEE ARF

2012 2013 2012

—E-=f% ZZ—=-f CZEBE-Z=Zf <ZT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FERT FAT
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables B e R
(including cash and ( \1%@%/‘1\&
cash equivalents) Re%EER) 205,660 82,512 69,979
Financial liabilities TRERE
Amortised cost AR 260,308 168,511 156,272
Financial risk management objectives MR EEREZ

The financial instruments are fundamental to the Group’s
and the Company’s daily operations. The Group’s and
Company’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, amount due from an intermediate
holding company, amounts due from (to) subsidiaries,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, amount due to ultimate holding
company, amount due to a fellow subsidiary, loans from an
intermediate holding company, loan from ultimate holding
company and bank borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with the financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

SRITANAEBRERARNF ZATELEER
REZ - AEERARAIZEESRMTA
BEE S REAMEWFIE B NIER
NAIFIE BEERRITER  RITEBR KRR
© BHRHEMEMNGKIE BRIPNTER
UNSIF/ SR FEHMFEH)BH%/AT XIE - JE
NEZEWEBRRRIE  BRPNIERAF

LB WJSZE—W RARZERKEIT

BE - ZEeMITAZERBBEMNZH
BoTXHEHEZEeMIAE@A ZRR
MR EZERBIBK BEEEEE
&ﬁ*hux—#ﬂ[ﬁﬁ'Lxﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬂvﬁxﬁlim%ﬂi

HE 2
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/ For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - ZE—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 29. €T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)
Market risk
Foreign currency risk management

Certain trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables, loans from an intermediate holding company,
borrowings, bank overdrafts and bank balances and cash
of the Group and the Company are denominated in US$,
other than the functional currency of the relevant group
entities, which expose the Group and the Company to
foreign currency risk. The Group and the Company have
not used any financial instruments to hedge against

BEEABREEER (&)
5 B2
S 2 B

$%&ZIK’D\ETZ%:FT’3%&E@F%%
B REMENTE PN ERIRZ
ff?ﬂ fEE RITEXRRITEHRARR
EOUERT(TRAREREREER 2E
E¥)HE EARERARREZINER
cAEENARABLARFNAEMN SR T
B¥hEELE - A EREEREINER
@ WEERBRZBEIPERINERR -

currency risk. However, the management monitors
foreign currency risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arise.
The carrying amounts of the Group's and the Company's RikERE EERARBAINESE
foreign currency denominated monetary assets and Zféi’fii'fé RE®aBZREREENT

monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

THE GROUP
rEE
Liabilities Assets
af& 5E
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—-= —E2——-F =ZE-= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET TR FET
us$ T 189,828 147,013 73,414 67,372
THE COMPANY
b /N
Liabilities Assets
af& 5E
2013 2012 2013 2012
-—T—= —E2—-F =ZFB-= —E—-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET TR FET
us$ e 42,966 40,532 64,296 51,785
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29.

= B 5 W AR MY A

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)
Market risk (Cont’d)

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table details the Group's and the Company’s
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in RMB against
US$. 5% represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. The sensitivity analysis represents the
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables,
loans from an intermediate holding company, borrowings,
bank overdrafts and bank balances and cash where the

E - = —HILFEE

29.

ERITE (&)
MERREEEE(E)
HEmE ()
SR

TRAFLDAEB L ARNRARHARKEHEE X
TLIHE M B2 E5% 2 B E © 5% R E 12
BYHINEER ARG EEFH 2 E - &
RESMEBREHRBEZAINIEFEZ
E¥ER YNFHERERHRINEET Y
5% B ) 1F SR - i AR T (X BIMNE R
R)EHE BRESTRKRE S R EMmEK
RE-BHREMBEMNRE POERRD
BlZER BE RITEXMRITEHRLE
T MAREHETRY EHURTFE
BRI ENIE M - SR ARBEETRE

denomination are in US$, the major foreign currency risk. 5% BEFEANRTERMNE —HHZE 28
A positive number indicates an increase in post-tax profit ZE - mryEnsg s
for the year where RMB strengthens against US$. For a 5%
weakening of RMB against US$, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the year,
and the balances below would be negative.
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
r5E NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= —ET——F ZE-Z= —E——F
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
FTER FET FTER FET
Increase (decrease) in post-tax AN 4F [Z & 1 18 )4 Al
profit for the year ZmCE D) 4,948 2,987 (907) (422)
Annual Report 2013 —ZE—=Ff3f
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

Interest rate risk management

The Group's and the Company's cash flow interest rate
risk relates primarily to variable-rate bank balances and
cash and bank borrowings. The Group and the Company
currently do not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise. The management considers the cash
flow interest rate risk is insignificant.

The Group and the Company are also exposed to fair
value interest rate risk in relation to the fixed-rate bank
borrowings and loans from an intermediate holding
company. However, the management considers the fair
value interest rate risk on the fixed-rate bank borrowings
and loans from an intermediate holding company are
insignificant as the bank borrowings are relatively short-
term and the interest rate of loans from an intermediate
holding company is low. The management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARAF
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)

Credit risk

The Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure to
perform their obligations as at 31 December 2013 and
2012 in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position and statement
of financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group and
the Company review regularly the recoverable amount of
each individual trade receivable to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the management consider that the Group's
and the Company's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentrations of credit risk on trade
receivables as 4% (2012: 6%) and 43% (2012: 35%)
of the total trade receivables was due from the Group's
largest customer and the five largest customers
(including the largest customer) respectively within the
"FPC business” and “sourcing and sale of electronic
components” operating segment in the PRC. The
management considers, based on the strong financial
background and good credibility of those debtors, there
are no significant credit risk.

The credit risk in relation to pledged bank deposits and
bank balances and cash is limited because the majority
of the counterparties are state-owned banks with good
reputation in the PRC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FEAK o

AEEHZEHRWRBZEERBEFRE
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EWASERPHZHEERIRER] R
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk reflects the risk that the Group and the
Company will have insufficient resources to meet its
financial liabilities as they fall due. The Group's and the
Company'’s strategy to managing liquidity risk is to ensure
that the Group and the Company have sufficient funds to
meet all its potential liabilities as they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group and
the Company monitor and maintain a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s and the Company’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
The management also monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group and the Company rely on borrowings as one
of the source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2013, the
Group and the Company had available unutilised short-
term loan facilities of approximately HK$207 million (2012:
HK$188 million) and HK$27 million (2012: HK$31 million),
respectively.

Liquidity tables

The following table details the Group's and the Company’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group and the Company can be required to

pay.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ—-F—=F+-A=+—HIFFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d)
Liquidity tables (Cont’d)
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the

undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at
the end of the reporting period.

29. €T H (&)

BEEBERERR (&)

mBELmE (&)

RBEEK (&)

TERERMNERAS ZHERE -HEHE
MERFBHNERZARET  RIFFHERAT
A E IR R 4R G

THE GROUP AEE
On
Weighted demand and Total Total
average less than 1-3 4-6 7-12 1-5 undiscounted carrying
interest rate  one month months months months years  cash flows amount
iy
mE EREEE FRRE
THRE  ROMER 123 A 4267 7Z12A 125% RELE RHAR
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tix T T T Tt T Tt
At 31 December 2013 W=B-Z£+-A=1-8
Non-derivative financial FESRER
liabilities
Trade and other payables BHREMERKE - (76,348) (50,959) (24,038) - = (151,345)  (151,345)
Loans from ultimate holding BRERARZER
company - - - - (1,023) - (1,023) (1,023)
Loans from an intermediate FNERAFZER
holding company 3.60 - - - - (41,046) (41,046) (38,775)
Borrowings: BE:
- fixed rate bank borrowings - EEBAEE 2.94 (23,308) (40,171) (41,836) (3,278) (15,709) (124,302) (122,141)
- variable rate bank - FEHIEE
borrowings 3.3 (4,188) - - - = (4,188) (4,178)
(103,844) (91,130) (65,874) (4,301) (56,755) (321,904) (317,462)
At 31 December 2012 RZB-Z#+ZA=t+-H
Non-derivative financial FEeREE
liabilities
Trade and other payables BHREMEMNTE - (52,424) (74,933) (12,222) - - (139,579) (139,579)
Amount due to a fellow ERRZNBARHE
subsidiary - (121) - - - - (121) (121)
Amount due to ultimate R EAERARFE
holding company - (995) - - - - (995) (995)
Loans from an intermediate FNERARZER
holding company 3.60 - - - - (47,381) (47,381) (44,760)
Loan from ultimate holding SRERAAZER
company - - = = (995) (995) (1,990) (1,990)
Borrowings: B8
~ fixed rate bank borrowings -EEHEE 402 (35,398) (37,726) - - - (73,124) (72,863)
(88,938) (112,659) (12,222) (995) (48,376) (263,190 (260,308)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ=—F—=F+-A=+—HIFFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

29. €T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d) MERREEREZ (&)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d) HEBELERE (EZ)
Liquidity tables (Cont’d) BBz (&)
THE COMPANY ARH
On
Weighted demand and Total Total
average less than 1-3 4-6 7-12 1-5 undiscounted carrying
interest rate  one month months months months years  cash flows amount
IS
nE ERBEE KBRS
FURE ROMER 12384 4268 1E12f8A 1255 RELE RHAR
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TR TET TR TET T TR
At 31 December 2013 RZB-Z#+ZA=1+-8
Non-derivative financial FESRER
liabilities
Trade and other payables BAREMERHE - (140) (247) - - - (387) (387)
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERNERARE - (104,401) - - - - (104,401)  (104,401)
Loans from an intermediate FNERAFZER
holding company 3.6 - - - - (41,046) (41,046) (38,775)
Borrowings:
- fixed rate bank borrowings 3.23 - (1,639) (1,639) (3,278) (15,709) (22,265) (20,771)
- variable rate bank
borrowings 3.23 (4,188) - - - - (4,188) (4,178)
(108,729) (1,886) (1,639) (3,278) (56,755) (172,287) (168,512)
At 31 December 2012 R=F-Z£+-A=t+-H
Non-derivative financial FiTEEREE
liabilities
Trade and other payables BHREMEMNTE - (140) (157) - - - (297) (297)
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERMERRE - (110,917) - - - - (110917)  (110,917)
Loans from an intermediate RNERAFZER
holding company 3.6 - - - - (47,381) (47,381) (44,760)
Borrowings: [B5:
— fixed rate bank borrowings - EERIEE 5.0 (298) - - - - (298) (298)
(111,355) (157) - - (47,381) (158,893) (156,272)
Fair value of financial instruments EMIAZRFE

The fair value of other financial assets and financial

liabilities are determined in accordance with generally

accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow

analysis.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEERALF
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

29.

30.

= B 5 R AR M A

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Fair value of financial instruments (Cont’d)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values at the end of the
reporting period.

No analysis of fair value measurements is presented as the
Group and the Company do not have financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair
value in the consolidated financial statement.

Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods
adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses
are recognised, in respect of each class of financial assets,
financial liabilities and equity instrument are disclosed in
note 3.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group and the Company manage their capital to
ensure that entities in the Group and the Company will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance. The Group’s and the Company's
overall strategy remain unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group and the Company
consist of bank borrowings disclosed in note 23, loans
from an intermediate holding company disclosed in note
22, loan from ultimate holding company disclosed in
note 24, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The management of the Group and the Company review
the capital structure on a continuous basis. The Group
and the Company consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital, and will balance
its overall capital structure through the raising of bank
borrowings and the redemption of existing debt.

EE— = —HIEE

29.

30.

SHITHE(£&)
SWMIE>ATHE (&)

ARBEERR RERMBRERANLHE
HRAIRZeMEERERBBZE®T
BEERHERARZ A FEBE-

2N SE TS AN R £ S R= g D e
NONTZ AR TFERRBLTEZESRTA
BREZ2| A FEAEZIN-

TEEFHHE

FRREeREE eMABNRKRATA
ERMzEIESFBERITE (BREER
BE FEEERRAEN X ZEAREE)
ZHBRME3WE -

EXRERER

AEERADA L EAE R EERRAE
B 2 B 8 R A A AR
B 8 BB (B 5 R PR 4 1 TR R
ARG ARERALT BBEREL
SEIBEE TR -

REERARE 2 ERREBREM E235
BZRITEE MaE2@mBE 2R ERA
AZEF MEUARESRKRERRATZE
FoHBRRERRSFERBEUEART
BAEAEGED (BESBTEAN - FER
REEN) °

AEBRARAEEEHBEEMNERRE
B-AKERARRERBIEARNRE
BEABE AR XEBEMRITEE
LREORBEEHBAFOERBEARE-
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31. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 21 June 2012, the Group disposed its 75% equity
interest in Ever Proven Investments Limited (“Ever
Proven”), which held a 53% interests in the PRC joint
venture, Shenzhen Smart Electronics Co., Limited, and a
shareholder’s loan due from Ever Proven to the Company,
to an independent third party for a consideration of
HK$11,794,000. Details of the disposal were disclosed in

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

/ For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - ZE—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

31 HE—EMBE LA

RZEBE—=—F<XA=-+—H' A&EH
LA (11,794,000 oA — & 38 B
= & & H P Ever Proven Investments
Limited ([Ever Proven |) 2 75%B%# &
Ever Proven: ”‘“Kﬁ”ﬂZHﬁ?%%ﬁ ﬁﬁEver
Provent5 B & & QR RYIBIHIESE

BRA 7253%%/\\"5%$1§Z#|ﬁ%€

the announcement of the Company dated 21 June 2012. RARBRHAZZE——F - ~A=-+—H
The net assets of the subsidiary at the date of disposal LA ZMBARINEEBHZEETF
were as follows: BEHFNET
HK$'000
FHT
Analysis of assets and liabilities over REERFEZEERAEBES
which control was lost:
Interest in a joint venture )ﬁ’s\*F’a SR WNCIg: £ 14,862
Amount due from a joint venture B —Ha % R RINIE 843
Bank balance ﬁETTm 15
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary e — R R B A R IR (860)
Loan from a non-controlling B AR —&IFEREREZER
shareholder of a subsidiary (2,247)
Amount due to immediate JERTEHEER A AIFIE
holding company (6,743)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 5,870
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—BRBELAR 2 WE:
Consideration received and receivable 2R ERRE 11,794
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE (5,870)
Non-controlling interests FEVE R M A 1,022
Assignment of amount due to immediate EEENEEERARNRIE
holding company (6,743)
Gain on disposal HEEE 2 IR 203
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZRERANFH:
Cash consideration received BHRERE 9,565
Consideration receivable in current year REZRERBARE (Wat)
(note) 2,229
Less: bank balance disposed of BB ERITE (15)
11,779

Note: The remaining consideration amounting to HK$2,229,000 was fully
settled in March 2013.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - F—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

32. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 32. EEHEH
At the end of the reporting period, certain bank deposits, RI|ERR T EFTRITFEH EFRL
buildings and land use rights were pledged to secure the MEAED FTER ERAEERARA]
banking facilities granted to the Group and the Company BERBITEEZCERAT:
as follows:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
ZB-=f —T--% ZB-Z§f —T-—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET FET
Bank deposits RITHER 2,355 2,354 2,355 2,354
Buildings BF 63,496 63,349 - -
Plant and machinery B Tt 28 71,728 54,786 - -
Land use rights b (E A 20,671 20,564 = -
Trade receivables B 2 IEWGIR - 8,411 = -
158,250 149,464 2,355 2,354
33. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 3. MEMHE AL
The Group as lessee AEBERFEBEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the RBEMR NEBRARARE LK
Company had outstanding commitments for future EFN A G ZE T E A T 51 AR 2 AP
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating ZARRFEEERIB 2 RBITAEDAT
leases in respect of land and buildings which fall due as
follows:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
r5E ENNE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f T ZB-=Z§f _"T—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FTERT FHET FTET FHT
Within one year —%R 309 188 120 20
In the second to fifth years BE_FEERF
inclusive (BREERMF) 141 - 140 -
450 188 260 20
Annual Report 2013 —ZE—=Ff3f
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/ For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ=—F—=F+-A=+—HIFFE

33. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Cont’d)
The Group as lessee (Cont’d)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group and the Company for certain of the factory, office
properties and staff quarters. Leases are negotiated for
terms ranging within one to three years.

The Group as lessor
Property rental income earned during the year was

HK$151,000 (2012: HK$349,000). All of the properties
held have committed tenants for the next two years.

33.

REHERE (£2)
AEBEAERBA (£)
KEHENTEAEBERARRHRSE TH
B -PBAEYMENBRIBESASNZESD -
HMEFHEN T —FE=F-
AEBEBEEHAA
FRABEMERLIKAIS1,00087T (ZF

— T4 :349,000870) 2 HIFHEZWE
RARKWFBHREPLAHEAE -

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=%f T ZEB-=Ff CZT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET TERT FET
Within one year —FR 22 129 - -
In the second to fifth years F_EEENEF
inclusive (BREEME) - 21 - -
22 150 - -
34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34, ERELE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f - ZE-=f T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET TER FExT
Capital expenditure in respect BENE -BERZEZ
of acquisition of property, EwNGE
plant and equipment:
— contracted for but BEHEIEEN A
not provided in the B RENEE
consolidated financial
statements 19,466 41,152 - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - F—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

35. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 35. BRIRERIFTE

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (the
“MPF"”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The retirement benefits scheme contributions charged
to consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of HK$38,000 (2012: HK$19,000)
represent contributions payable to the MPF scheme by the
Group, which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees employed in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. The Group
is required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the
benefits. The state-managed retirement benefits scheme
contributions charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income amounted
to HK$6,403,000 (2012: HK$3,851,000). The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

No forfeited contributions are available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.

RNEBRAMBEABCEEAREERR R
sIEAEe ([BES]) REaEak
H 2 E a7 AT 2 2 R M E 8l
X A38,00008 L ( —ZF — = £ :19,0005%
) DBEAEERXNTEBESFE 2 H#
FomEESEHMR MR-

AEEFHEBAREAZEE BTEHK
FEEZBERKBREEZKE A&
EEMRRENGEZNFecaTES
HEBEMNS R BEREME2EK
mEx NS Y 2 B RIKEF T EER A
6,403,000/ 7T ( == — =4 : 3,851,000/
TL) c AEERRREFEE I E—EEAR
RIBZETEIE L AT 2 K-

AR B R W AR BT R R HLR SR 4 R
2 ke
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36. BERRS

152

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the balances set out in notes 15, 22 and 24,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e mARME

B & A 5115 22 K247 ié%’ﬂl\ AN

the Group and the Company entered into the following BN RNEBEARA TG EBENEL
transactions with related parties during the year: T3R5 -
THE GROUP EHE
2013 2012
—E—-= T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHT
(i) Transactions with fellow (i) ERRZNBARZRS:
subsidiaries:
Rentals for office charged to MRS E Y E 2
the Group MAEHED 120 105
Income from rental of office MAZEHESWA - 33
Transactions with an intermediate B NERARZRZ S
holding company:
Interest paid by the Group REEX N ZHE 1,524 1,264

(ii) Transactions/balances with other state-controlled
entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment
currently predominated by entities directly or
indirectly owned or controlled by the PRC government
("state-controlled entities”). In addition, the Group
itself is part of a larger group of companies under
CNIC which is controlled by the PRC government.

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z - F—=—F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

THE GROUP (Cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled
entities in the PRC (Cont’d)

The Group also conducts business with other state-
controlled entities. The directors consider those state-
controlled entities to be third parties so far as the
Group's business with them are concerned.

In addition, the Group has entered into various
transactions, including deposits placements,
borrowings and other general banking facilities, with
certain banks which are stated-controlled entities in
its ordinary course of business.

The directors are of the opinion that the transactions
with other state-controlled entities are not significant
to the Group’s operations.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management during the
year represented remuneration paid to directors as
disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The remuneration of key management personnel is
determined by the Remuneration Committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

36. BERXR S (#&)

REM (&)

(ii)

(iii)

EREHEMEARENEREEZRS
SRR ()

AEETFEEMBRESERETE
B EFRR RAKEEE Y XM
FOREEREHCERE=T-

il

N AEBEERHEEEXBBIET
HESBREFEEZETRITAILE
BR5 BREF EELEM KR
TRE -

EERAREMBERENER LIRS
BAKEZEESFER-

TEEBABZHE

FRETEEEABZMEERATE

BERME0OMBREXNEEST ZM

N
Sz

TREBEABZHMEmFMEESR
BEAAXRBREMSEBEEE -
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/ For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 36. BERRS (&)
THE COMPANY AT
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHETT
(iv) Transactions with subsidiaries: (iv) BB AT ZX 5 :
Sales of goods by the Company ARAFRIHEHEE R 336 15,017
Sales of equipment by RAGHERE
the Company 13,906 5,065
Commission income received by R B FTYEL 2
the Company e - 430
Purchases of goods by RABIEEEm
the Company 241,055 249,146
Interest income FLEM A 419 421
Transactions with fellow HRARMB AR 2R S
subsidiaries:
Rentals for office charged to MAR R
the Company MAEMD 120 105
Income from rental of office WAEHES WA - 33
Transactions with an intermediate BANMERABIZRS:
holding company:
Interest paid by the Company RRABEZRZFE 1,524 1,264
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37.

= B 5 R AR M A

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 27 January 2014, the Company allotted 290,920,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each to an independent third
party at a subscription price of HK$0.513 per share. On
the same day, the Company allotted 132,150,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each by placing to six placees at a
placing price of HK$0.513 per share. The Company raised
approximately HK$213,996,000 (net of expenses). The
new placing shares and subscription shares were issued
pursuant to the specific mandates granted to the directors
by resolutions of the shareholders of the Company passed
at the extraordinary general meeting held on 27 December
2013. Further details of the placing and subscription of
new shares are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 27 November 2013, 27 December 2013 and 27
January 2014.

37. REHRUR Z2EE

RZE—NFE—A-Z++H RNQFUR
BESROSIBETLHN —RBILE=-HER
#£290,920,000/% T IR M (E0.108 jT 2 &
AR-FA AXAREEBEREEESTR
05138 LA N B &AL AETTR & B %
132,150,0000% & ik E{E0. 108 L 2 &8
B% o AR B1E 15 49213,996,00078 7T ($0Fk
) o FTBCE R D RRER G DIRBERA
ARERZE—=F+ZA=Z+tHET
ZERRFAAE LBRIAERAEEE
B2 SRR ERETT - B E KRB
MzE—FFE R ARTAHAZE
—=F+—A=-t++tH - ZE2—=F+=
A-++BE-_Z—WNF—/F_++tHZ
NG
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Financial Summary

oh
B %8 E
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=t—-HLEE
RESULTS 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
¥& —E-=f —E——-Ff —T——F —T-FTF —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHRT FAET FHET FAT FAET
Revenue WA 641,159 600,686 415,372 345,945 267,530
Cost of sales HERA (552,804) (507,521)  (360,656)  (308,229)  (256,973)
Gross profit EF 88,355 93,165 54,716 37,716 10,557
Other income H A 10,326 3,838 4,929 6,468 58,957
Distribution costs R AR (12,048) (12,270) (13,261) (7,195) (2,867)
Administrative expenses THRX T (25,130) (27,643) (21,235) (18,075) (16,078)
Factory relocation costs B 55 % 8 X AR - - - - (21,412)
Research and development  THEZE R
expenses (22,589) (12,648) (11,055) (9,733) (7,635)
Share of result of [ERAEERRIZEE
a joint venture - (3,301) (3,887) (82) (3,041)
Finance costs BERA (5,406) (6,458) (5,844) (3,914) (933)
Profit before taxation B B B A 33,508 34,683 4,363 5,185 17,548
Taxation (charge) credit BB (AX)EE (2,041) (2,146) (391) (2,101) 160
Profit for the year EE R 7 31,467 32,537 3,972 3,084 17,708
At 31 December
R+=—B=+—H
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
BEEREE —E-=ZfF —T-——-F —T——F —FT-TF —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT FAT FAT FAT
Total assets BEE 655,027 563,943 513,453 468,869 370,671
Total liabilities BAEE (372,184)  (320,216)  (303,009)  (274,360)  (188,060)
282,843 243,727 210,444 194,509 182,611
Equity attributable to RABHEA NERER
owners of the Company 279,420 241,502 207,118 190,069 179,284
Non-controlling interests R 3,423 2,225 3,326 4,440 3,327
Total equity B 282,843 243,727 210,444 194,509 182,611

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEMNBEARALF
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